




1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Noelle Scoullar, Executive Assistant 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  February 28, 2023 
 
ITEM:  Public Hearing-Review and possible approval of Captain’s Choice Seasonal 
Entertainment License 
 
EXPLANATION:  Kristi Wageman, Manager of Captain’s Choice, has submitted an application 
for a Seasonal Entertainment License.  Applying for a Seasonal Entertainment License minimize 
the administrative burden on the applicant, the Board, and the staff, by eliminating the need 
to submit individual applications for each date.  The Police Chief has reviewed and approved 
the application. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  The manager of Captain’s Choice will need to apply for single 
Entertainment Licenses for each event. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to approve the 2023 Seasonal Entertainment License for 
Captain’s Choice, Sundays and Seasonal Weekday: (Subject to change)with a start time of 
3:00pm and an end time of 5:00pm. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Memo from Manager Kristi Wageman and Application for Seasonal Entertainment 
License 

2. Public Hearing Notice 

 

Consent Agenda Item:  2A 
 
 
 
 



                                       Agenda Item: 2A1 















Agenda Item:  2A2



1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

                     Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Nicole Tudor, Executive Assistant 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  February 28, 2023 
 
ITEM:  Public Hearing for application from Salty Market Farmstand Inc., Liam Rowland, 
Manager, and Owner, at 2 Highland Road for a change of their Retail Off-Premise All-Alcohol 
license from Seasonal to Annual Use. 
 
EXPLANATION:  Liam Rowland, Manager and Owner of Salty Market Farmstand Inc., located at 
2 Highland Road, has submitted an application for an amendment-change of license 
classification- for their Retail Off-Premise All-Alcohol license to go from a Seasonal License to 
an Annual License.  In accordance with the provisions of MGL Chapter 138 Section 15, the 
Truro Select Board will conduct a Public Hearing to review and approve this change. Prior to 
2019 2 Highland Road had an annual retail alcohol license. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  Mr. Rowland will not be approved to change from a Seasonal 
License to an Annual License. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to Approve the Application for Change of License Classification 
for Salty Market Farmstand Inc., from a Retail Off-Premise Seasonal License to a Retail Off-
Premise Annual License and sign the ABCC LLA Review Record form.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Public Hearing Notice 
2. Application for Classification Change  
3. Memo from Police Chief  

 

           Agenda Item: 2B  
 
 
 
 



                                         Agenda Item: 2B1 



                                  Agenda Item: 2B2













Truro 90258-PK-1292 

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts 

Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission For Reconsideration
 

 

LICENSING AUTHORITY CERTIFICATION 
 

 

 

TRANSACTION TYPE (Please check all relevant transactions): 
City /Town ABCC License Number 

The license applicant petitions the Licensing Authorities to approve the following transactions: 
 

 New License 

Transfer of License 

 Change of Location 

Alteration of Licensed Premises 

 
Change of Class (i.e. Annual / Seasonal) 

 

Change of License Type (i.e. club / restaurant) 

 Change Corporate Structure (i.e. Corp / LLC) 

Pledge of Collateral (i.e. License/Stock) 

Change of Manager Change Corporate Name Change of Category (i.e. All Alcohol/Wine, Malt) Management/Operating Agreement 

Change of Officers/ 

Directors/LLC Managers 

Change of Ownership Interest 

 (LLC Members/ LLP Partners, 
Trustees) 

 Issuance/Transfer of Stock/New Stockholder 

Other 

 Change of Hours 

Change of DBA 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Local Licensing Authorities By: 

 

Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission 

Ralph Sacramone 

Executive Director 

 
 

 

 

 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 

Name of Licensee Salty Market Farmstand Inc. DBA Salty Market Farmstand 

Street Address Zip Code 02652 

Manager Liam Luttrell Rowland 
Granted under 

Special Legislation? 

If Yes, Chapter 

of the Acts of (year) 

Yes No 

§15 Package Store 

Type 
(i.e. restaurant, package store) 

Annual 

Class 
(Annual or Seasonal) 

All Alcoholic Beverages 

Category 
(i.e. Wines and Malts / All Alcohol) 

2 Highland Road 

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES Complete description of the licensed premises 

Located in a 2 1/2 story structure. 2 public rooms, plus deli prep space on one floor and basement storage. Front entry/exit, 2 rear doors. 

LOCAL LICENSING AUTHORITY INFORMATION 

Application filed with the LLA: 

Advertised Yes No 

Date 

Date Published 

01/31/2023 Time 

Publication 

09:28AM 

Abutters Notified: Yes No Date of Notice 

Date APPROVED by LLA 02/28/2023 Decision of the LLA 

Additional remarks or conditions 
(E.g. Days and hours) 

For Transfers ONLY: 

Seller License Number: Seller Name: 

2/7/2023 

Provincetown Independent 2/9/23 and 2/16/23 



                               Agenda Item: 2B3



1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Noelle Scoullar, Executive Assistant 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  February 28, 2023 
 
ITEM:  Public Hearing for Eversource Energy 
 
EXPLANATION:  Eversource Energy has submitted a petition covering the installation of 34’ +/- 
of 3-4” conduit from proposed handhole 9/H42-A to the customer installed handhole 9/H42-B.  
The purpose of this construction is to provide electric service to the customer located at 81 
South Pamet Road. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  Customer at 81 South Pamet Road will not have electrical service. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to approve the petition from Eversource Energy to install 34’ +/- 
of 3-4” conduit from proposed handhole 9/H42-A to the customer installed handhole 9/H42-B 
and to electronically sign the Form of Order. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Eversource Memo and Email 
2. Petition for Underground Cable and Conduit Locations 
3. Form of Order for Underground Cable and Conduit Locations 
4. Certified Abutters List 
5. Eversource Plan 
6. Stamped Public Hearing Notice 

 

Agenda Item:  2C 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item:  2C1























1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR: Select Board Chair Kristen Reed 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  February 28, 2023 
 
ITEM:  Cape Cod National Seashore Advisory Commission Appointments 
 
EXPLANATION:  The National Park Service has reached out to Chair Reed inviting the Board to 
nominate two individuals for consideration in appointing one voting member and one voting 
alternate member to the Cape Cod National Seashore Advisory Commission.  Three individuals 
have submitted applications, and the resumes required by the Department of Interior. Both 
appointments are for two-year terms.  
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  Truro will not have representatives on this Commission. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to nominate XXX to the Cape Cod National Seashore Advisory 
Commission as a voting member, with a term to last two years. 
Motion to nominate XXX to the Cape Cod National Seashore Advisory Commission as an 
alternate voting member, with a term to last two years. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. CCNS Rep Request Letter 
2. Application to Serve- Susan Areson 
3. Application to Serve- Carol Santos 
4. Application to Serve- Robert Weinstein 

 

Agenda Item:  4A 
 
 
 
 



                                            Agenda Item: 4A1



Agenda Item:  4A2







Susan H. Areson 
2 Eric’s Road                                                                         
Truro, Mass. 02666-0065                                                                
 
Skills 
Writing, editing, communication, collaborative decision-making, managing people, 
managing projects, meeting deadline, administrative tasks  
 
Experience 
Town of Truro: Truro, MA: Spring 2016-present 
   Serving in second three-year term on town Select Board; previously served on Truro 
Zoning Board of Appeals and Truro Finance Committee 
 
The Providence Journal, Providence, RI: Oct. 1986-Feb. 2016 
   Retired as deputy executive editor after serving in various editing and managerial roles, 
including acting executive editor, metropolitan managing editor, city editor, deputy 
managing editor and Sunday editor 
 
USA Today, Alexandria, Virginia. Dec. 1988-Oct. 1992. Correspondent from Rhode Island 
for Statesline news page 
 
The Haverhill Gazette, Haverhill, Mass.: Dec. 1982-Oct. 1986 
  Managing editor and a variety of other editing and reporting roles 
 
The Advocate, Provincetown, Mass., March 1978-Dec. 1982 
  Managing editor and a variety of other editing and reporting/photography roles 
 
Other experience 
West End Racing and Community Children’s Sailing: Provincetown, MA: January 2018-
present: Serve as clerk on the board of this nonprofit organization, which offers sailing 
instruction at low cost to children ages 8-14 
 
Friends of the Truro Library: Truro, MA: Summer 2016-Spring 2018: Served as treasurer 
for this nonprofit organization, which offers community programming and financial support 
for activities at the Truro Public Library 
 
Story in the Public Square, 2012-2017: Board member of this initiative, a collaboration 
between The Providence Journal and Salve Regina University in Newport, to study and 
celebrate stories that inform the public discourse -- through journalism, documentary films, 
movies and music   
 
Rhode Island Press Association, 2011-2016: Vice president from 2014-2016 and board 
member prior 
 
Career notables 
2015: Citizen Journalism Academy: Coordinated a four-session course for interested 
Rhode Island citizens on the journalism practices, ethics and business models for a news 
organization in the current media environment. 
 



2014-2015: Executive Leadership Development Program: Was one of 15 participants 
chosen by A.H. Belo Corporation for a 10-month program to develop executives and 
propose solutions to a specific business challenge facing the company. 
 
2011: The Pension Puzzle: Served as coordinating and content editor on year-long 
public-service project explaining Rhode Island’s pension crisis. The series involved hundreds 
of stories, using database reporting and supplementing with online, interactive elements. 
The legislature approved a pension overhaul that brought national attention. Series won 
national and regional awards. 
 
2009: The Price of Miracles. Served as coordinating and content editor on a year-long 
series exploring the costs and consequences of premature births. The Providence Journal 
and projo.com did groundbreaking work on this series in interactive and onliine elements. It 
won numerous national and regional awards.  
 
2003: Station nightclub fire coverage. Served as a key assigning and content editor on 
hundreds of stories and several series in the aftermath of the second-deadliest nightclub fire 
in U.S. history. Journal coverage won numerous regional and national awards and was a 
finalist for the Pulitzer Prize in public service reporting. 
 
1994: Pulitzer Prize for public service reporting: Was a member of the editing team on 
coverage of corruption in Rhode Island’s judicial system 
 
1992: George Polk Award for Regional Reporting: Project copy editor for a six-part 
series exposing abuses that caused the collapse of Rhode Island’s credit unions 
 
Education 
Colby College, Waterville, Maine. Bachelor of Arts, English literature; cum laude; distinction 
in the major 
 
Boston University School of Public Communication, Boston, Mass., on one-year leave-of-
absence from Colby College, journalism concentration 
 
References available on request 
 



Agenda Item:  4A3









Application to Serve on a Board or Committee 

Last Name 

weinstein 

First Name 

robert 

Middle tnltlal 

m 

Email Address 

Phone Number 

Address (Street) 

7 dyers hollow rd 

Address (City) 

truro 

Address (State) 

ma 

Address (Zip Code) 

02666 

Malllng Address (Please indicate box number and zip code) 

box 479 truro 02666 

Only full-time, registered Truro voters are able to serve on 

Truro 

regulatory boards and commissions. Al l taxpayers/ residents are eligible to serve on 

non-regulatory boards and commissions. 

Februa,y 17, 2023 AppHcBtion to Serve on a Board or Committee 

Agenda Item: 4A4







Application to Serve on the Cape Cod Seashore Advisory Committee 
 
 

RESUME 
 
 

Name: 
Robert M. Weinstein 
 
Street Address: 
7 Dyers Hollow Road  Truro, MA 02666 
 
Mailing Address: 
P.O. Box 479 
Truro, MA 02666 
 
Email Address: 

 
 
Phone Number: 

 
 
Education: 
University of Chicago, ‘AB with Honors, 1971 
Writing Fellow, Fine Arts Work Center, Provincetown, MA 1972-1974 
 
Work History: 
CEO, Roberts Associates Builders, Inc. Truro, 1975-2002 
 Small (14 employees) Residential and Commercial Construction Company; 
 Projects published in Fine Home Building and Architectural Digest 
 
Municipal Experience: 
Truro Select Board, currently serving fourth term, serving as Chair for two terms, currently 
serving as Vice-Chair; 
Region D (Eastham, Wellfleet, Truro and Provincetown) representative to the Metropolitan 
Planning Organization, in association with the Cape Cod Commission; 
Truro Charter Commission, Vice-Chair, assisted in drafting Truro’s first Charter; 
  
Additional Municipal Service: 
Truro Planning Board member 
Truro Zoning Board of Appeals member 
Truro Finance Committee member 
Pamet Harbor Commission member 
Truro Town Building Committee member 
 
 



Additional Relevant Information: 
Resident and property owner within the Cape Cod National Seashore for almost half a century 
and comprehensively familiar with the enabling legislation of 1961; 
Interested in assuring the on-going and future viability and protection of the Cape Cod National 
Seashore; 
Attended numerous meetings of the Cape Cod National Seashore Advisory Commission, prior to 
its dissolution. 
 



1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Kristy Senatori, Cape Cod Commission 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  February 28, 2023 
 
ITEM:  Cape Cod Commission Update 
 
EXPLANATION:  Kristy Senatori, Executive Director of the Cape Cod Commission, will update 
the Select Board on the Cape Cod Commission. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  N/A 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Presentation Only. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: NONE 

 

Agenda Item:  5B 
 
 
 
 



 

 

DEPARTMENT: Finance  

 
TOWN OF TRURO 
Select Board Agenda Item 

Agenda Item: 7A 

 
REQUESTOR: Alex Marini Lessin, Finance Director: Treasurer/Collector  

 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE: February 28, 2023 

 
ITEM: Discussion and Appointment of a Select Board Representative to the Financial Policies Working Group  

 
EXPLANATION: Staff from the Edward J. Collins Center, including recently retired Town Administrator Mark 
Rees and Finance Director Robert Addelson, will guide the Town through the review and production of a 
Financial Policies and Procedures Manual. The manual will include guidance on budget formation, forecasting 
principals, investment policy statement language, accounting procedures, and borrowing guidelines, among 
other topics. The working group will determine what specific policies should be under consideration, provide 
feedback on draft policies, and help explain the impact of the manual to the Town. Other members of the 
working group will include a member of the Finance Committee, the Town Manager, Town Accountant, Town 
Assessor, Town Finance Director, and other Town staff.   
 
The working group will hold at least three meetings over the next six months. Staff requests that the Board 
appoint one of its members to serve on the Financial Policies Working Group. The Financial Policies and 
Procedures Manual will be brought back to the entire Board upon its completion for adoption.   

 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE): Project is grant funded through the Commonwealth’s Community 
Compact Program.   

 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED: The Select Board will not have a representative on the working group.    

 
SUGGESTED ACTION: MOTION TO appoint {INSERT NAME OF ONE SELECT BOARD MEMBER} to serve as 
a member of the working group.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: None    

 
 



 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Town Clerk 
 
REQUESTOR:  Kaci Fullerton, Town Clerk 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  February 28, 2023 
 
ITEM:  Discussion and Possible Approval of Vote by Mail Opt Out 
 
EXPLANATION:  Early voting by mail is required for all local elections and preliminaries unless 
the city or town opts out.  In order to opt out of Vote by Mail for a local election, the Select 
Board must hold a public hearing and public roll call vote to NOT allow Vote by Mail no later 
than 45 days before the date of the election.  Towns cannot opt out of Vote by Mail for a local 
election if the election is happening on the same day as a state election, state primary, or 
presidential primary.  Should the Select Board vote to hold a public hearing and public roll call 
vote, it must be held no later than March 24, 2023. If the Select Board determines tonight that 
it may wish to opt out of vote by mail for local elections, it should vote favorably to hold a 
public hearing on the matter at the March 14th Select Board meeting. If the Board determines 
that it would not like to opt out of vote by mail for local elections, no action will be needed by 
the Board.  
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  There will be vote by mail for the local election. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to approve holding a public hearing on March 14, 2023 on Opt-
out of vote by mail for the local election. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Planning for Town Elections document 
2. Election Advisory 22-01; Election Law Changes 
3. Opt Out Vote By Mail Poll 

 

Agenda Item:  7B 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING FOR TOWN 

ELECTIONS 

William Francis Galvin 

Secretary of the Commonwealth 
Elections Division 

One Ashburton Place, Room 1705 

Boston, MA 02108 

617-727-2828

800-462-8683

www.sec.state.ma.us/ele

elections@sec.state.ma.us

Revised 2022 

Agenda Item:  7B1

http://www.sec.state.ma.us/ele
mailto:elections@sec.state.ma.us


1 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
I. Introduction ..........................................................................................................2 

 

II. Calling Elections and Meetings...........................................................................2 

Timing ..........................................................................................................2 

Warrants .......................................................................................................2 

Nomination Papers .......................................................................................3 

 

III. Deadlines............................................................................................................4 

Rules to Remember ......................................................................................4 

Using a Single Warrant ................................................................................4 

Checklist ......................................................................................................4 

Vacancies .....................................................................................................5 

Ballot Questions ...........................................................................................5 

Special Town Meetings................................................................................5 

 

IV. Election Materials ..............................................................................................6 

Voter Registration Forms .............................................................................6 

Ballots ..........................................................................................................6 

Envelopes .....................................................................................................6 

Accessible Voting Equipment......................................................................6 

Tallying Materials ........................................................................................6 

Ballot Tabulators ..........................................................................................7 

Ballot Containers and Seals .........................................................................7 

Recounts .......................................................................................................7 

 

V. On & After Election Day ....................................................................................7 

Polling Hours ...............................................................................................7 

Oaths ............................................................................................................7 

 

VI. Appendix............................................................................................................8 

Sample Warrant ...........................................................................................8 

Town Election Calendar Template ..............................................................9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 

 
This booklet is intended for use in planning local elections and town meetings. In most towns, 

the dates and deadlines associated with local elections and town meetings are determined by the 

General Laws. An election official in any town operating under a charter or special act of the 

Legislature should consult the charter or act before planning an election. 

 

 

II. CALLING ELECTIONS AND MEETINGS 

 
Timing 

Every year, towns must hold their town elections and town meetings. Annual town elections and 

town meetings must take place between February 1st and June 30th. The election and the town 

meeting are called by the selectmen, though towns may adopt bylaws to prescribe the dates that 

they will be held. G.L. c. 39, § 9. 

 

Special elections and special town meetings may be called by the selectmen at any time, though 

certain provisions in the General Laws may restrict how soon the election or town meeting may 

be held. 

 

Warrants 

For every election and town meeting, a warrant must be issued under the hands of the selectmen. 

An election warrant must list the date of the election, all offices to be voted on in the form in 

which they will appear on the ballot, all ballot questions in their entirety, the polling hours, and 

the polling locations for each precinct. G.L. c. 54, §§ 63, 64. 

 

Town meeting warrants must include the date, time, and place of the meeting, as well as any 

articles to be voted upon. Voters may petition for the inclusion of articles on the warrant. Though 

state law does not specify a period during which the warrant must be open for the addition of 

articles, the selectmen should have a policy in place for the opening and closing of the warrant.  

 

Upon the written request of at least ten voters, the selectmen shall insert into the warrant of an 

annual town meeting the subject indicated on the petition. For special town meeting warrants, at 

least 100 voters or ten percent (10%) of all registered voters (whichever number is lesser) must 

petition for the insertion of the article. Such petitions are commonly referred to as “citizen 

petitions.” It is not required that a citizen petition be in a certain format, though some towns 

choose to provide templates to those who want them.  

 

Voters petitioning for a warrant article must sign their names and addresses on a petition which 

specifies the subject matter of the desired article. Voters may design their own petitions, as long 

as they meet the legal requirements. It is recommended that each page of the petition include the 

warrant article subject and specify the town meeting at which it will be considered. 

 

Special town meetings may be called by the selectmen or upon the request of 200 registered 

voters or twenty percent (20%) of all registered voters (whichever number is lesser). The General 

Laws do not require that petitions for special town meetings be on a specific form, though the 



3 
 

Elections Division does provide forms for convenience. Petitions for special town meetings must 

contain the subject matter of the desired meeting, as well as the names and addresses of the 

required number of registered voters. 

 

Petitions for warrant articles and special town meetings must be submitted to the selectmen for 

their consideration. Upon receiving a petition, the selectmen shall submit it to the board of 

registrars, who must certify that the names and addresses on the petition are those of registered 

voters. Registrars are not required to certify more than the number of signatures required for each 

petition.  

 

Once the selectmen have signed the warrant, they shall direct it to the constables or some other 

persons to post it in accordance with the town’s bylaws. Town bylaws should specify the 

location or locations where the warrant must be posted.  

 

Warrants for all elections and annual town meetings must be posted at least seven days before 

the election or meeting. Warrants for special town meetings must be posted at least 14 days 

before the meeting. If the town’s bylaws specify an earlier time for posting, the bylaws should be 

adhered to. G.L. c. 39, § 10. 

 

Nomination Papers 

While the General Laws do not require that town nomination papers be released by a certain 

date, it is recommended that clerks allow ample time for candidates to gather signatures. It is 

further recommended that clerks remain consistent in the time of year that nomination papers are 

released. Prior to releasing nomination papers, town clerks should have a listing of all offices to 

appear and the terms, including any vacancies. 

 

Town nomination papers are provided to town clerks by the Elections Division, upon request. 

Town clerks can only provide nomination papers to a candidate or a person authorized in writing 

by a candidate. G.L. c. 53, § 17. Clerks should not complete the candidate information on the 

papers and instead should provide direction to the candidate. 

 

Except as otherwise provided by charter or special act, the number of certified signatures 

required to be nominated for town office will depend on the number of votes cast for governor 

and lieutenant governor at the previous state election which included those offices.  

 

Before releasing nomination papers, clerks should calculate one percent (1%) of the total number 

of votes cast for all candidates for governor and lieutenant governor in the town (including write-

ins, excluding blanks) at the last gubernatorial election. If that number is less than 20, the 

number of signatures required shall be 20; if it is greater than 50, the number of required 

signatures shall be 50. Any number between 20 and 50, inclusive, must be rounded to the nearest 

integer and shall be the number of signatures required until the next gubernatorial election.  

G.L. c. 53, § 6. 

 

In towns which have accepted section 9A of chapter 53 of the General Laws, clerks must 

multiply the number of signatures required by five (5), in order to determine the maximum 

number of petitions each candidate may receive. No candidate in towns which have accepted this 



4 
 

section may receive more blank nomination papers than it would be necessary to submit five 

times as many signatures as are required in order to be nominated. 

 

Clerks in towns which have accepted section 9A of chapter 53 of the General Laws must also 

require candidates to file a statement containing his or her name, address, and the office for 

which he or she intends to be a candidate. No nomination papers may be given to any candidate 

who has not filed such a statement. Clerks may wish to create a form or log for candidates to 

complete. 

 

 

III. DEADLINES 
 

Before nomination papers are released, clerks must calculate the calendar of deadlines associated 

with the election.  

 

Rules to Remember 

Unless otherwise noted, all deadlines will be at 5:00 p.m. on the day specified.  

 

Unless specified otherwise, if the last day of a period falls on a Sunday or legal holiday, the 

deadline shall be moved to the previous day.  

 

When calculating a deadline, the clerk should count all calendar days, unless the statute indicates 

that they are “working days,” “business days,” or “weekday hours.” Such language indicates that 

only Monday-Friday non-holidays should be included in calculating the dates. G.L. c. 50, § 4. 

 

Using a Single Warrant 

If the annual town meeting and town election are separated by no more than thirty-five days, 

both may be called on the same warrant. If only one warrant is used, then only one voter 

registration session is necessary. The last day to register to vote in both the town election and 

town meeting would fall on the tenth day prior to the election or the town meeting, whichever is 

scheduled first. G.L. c. 39, § 9A. 

 

Checklist 

Below is a checklist which may be helpful in calculating deadlines. 

 

1. Determine whether the town has accepted G.L. c. 41, §110A. Towns which have 

accepted this statute treat Saturdays as holidays. A deadline which falls on a Saturday 

will not move to a different day unless this section has been accepted. 

2. Determine whether the town has accepted G.L. c. 53, § 9A. If the town has accepted this 

statute, there will be a last day to obtain nomination papers. If the town has not accepted 

this statute, nomination papers may be obtained until the deadline to submit them. 

3. Count 5 weeks back from the date of the election (35 days) – this is the last day to submit 

nomination papers to the clerk. If this date falls on a Sunday or holiday, the deadline will 

move back one day. If the date ends up on a Saturday, it will move back to Friday only if 

the town has accepted G.L. c. 41, §110A. G.L. c. 53, § 10; G.L. c. 50 § 2. 



5 
 

4. Count 2 weeks (14 days) back from the last day to submit nomination papers to the clerk 

– this is the last day to submit nomination papers to the board of registrars. If this 

deadline falls on a Sunday or holiday, the deadline will move back one day. If the date 

ends up on a Saturday, it will move back to Friday only if the town has accepted G.L. c. 

41, §110A. G.L. c. 53, § 7. 

5. Count 2 weekdays after the last day to submit nomination papers to the clerk – this is the 

deadline to object or withdraw. If the deadline to submit nomination papers to the clerk 

falls on a Tuesday, the deadline to object or withdraw will be on Thursday. Because these 

are weekday hours, if the deadline to submit nomination papers to the clerk falls on a 

Friday, the deadline to object or withdraw will fall on the following Tuesday.  

G.L. c. 53, § 11; G.L. c. 55B, § 7. 

6. If the town has accepted G.L. c. 53, § 9A, count 2 weekdays back from the last day to 

submit nomination papers to the registrars – this is the last day to obtain nomination 

papers. 

7. Count 15 days back from the last day to submit nomination papers to the registrars – this 

is the last day for the selectmen to notify the clerk of any vacancies to be placed on the 

ballot. G.L. c. 41, § 10. 

8. Count one week (7 days) back from the date of the election – this is the last day to post 

the warrant. If the election and town meeting are being called on the same warrant and 

the town meeting is earlier than the election, count 7 days back from the town meeting 

instead. G.L. c. 39, § 9. 

9. Count 10 days back from the date of the election – this is the last day to register to vote. 

If the election and the town meeting are being called on the same warrant and the town 

meeting is earlier than the election, count 10 days back from the town meeting instead. 

G.L. c. 51, §§ 26, 28. 

 

Vacancies 

No vacancy may appear on the annual town election ballot unless the selectmen have voted to 

place the office on the ballot and have notified the clerk by the fifteenth day before the last day 

to submit nomination papers to the registrars. Absent any deadlines falling on Sundays or legal 

holidays, this means that the selectmen must notify the clerk of any vacancies by the 64th day 

before the election. G.L. c. 41, § 10. 

 

Ballot Questions 

All ballot questions to be placed on the town election ballot must be submitted to the clerk no 

later than 35 days before the election. G.L. c. 54, § 42C. This includes the exact form of the 

question to appear on the ballot and any summary, if authorized by state law or charter. 

 

Special Town Meetings 

Warrants for special town meetings must be posted no later than 14 days before the meeting. 

G.L. c. 39, § 10. 

 

The last day to register to vote in any special town meeting is 10 days before the meeting.  

G.L. c. 51, §§ 26, 28. 

 

 



6 
 

IV. ELECTION MATERIALS 
 

Before Election Day, it is important to make sure that the town clerk’s office is stocked with all 

of the necessary materials. Many materials are provided by the Elections Division, such as voter 

registration forms, nomination papers, and certain petitions. If materials are low, the Elections 

Division should be contacted for additional supplies as soon as possible. 

 

Voter Registration Forms 

The Elections Division provides each community with mail-in and in-office voter registration 

forms. Where necessary, forms are also provided in languages other than English. If forms are 

running low, additional forms may be ordered from the Elections Division. 

 

Mail-in voter registration forms are available on the secretary’s website and copies may be made, 

if necessary. Citizens who would like a large supply of registration forms should be directed to 

the Elections Division, which can provide larger quantities. 

 

Ballots 
All ballots for local elections are prepared and provided by the local election official. Once all 

candidates and ballot questions have been determined, the clerk must prepare to have ballots 

printed. Before authorizing printing of ballots, it is important to make sure that they have been 

reviewed for accuracy and proof-read. While the General Laws do not specify a deadline by 

which absentee ballots must be made available, it is recommended that they be printed and ready 

for voters at least 3-4 weeks before the elections. G.L. c. 54, § 40. Please see the “Ballot 

Preparation” booklet for additional information.  

 

Envelopes 

Absentee ballot envelopes and provisional ballot envelopes are provided by the Elections 

Division for state elections and primaries. While the state does not provide absentee materials for 

local elections, clerks often have large supplies of most of the envelopes, and supplies left over 

from previous biennial state elections may be used for local elections. The inner absentee ballot 

envelopes (AV-7s) are replaced after each biennial state election, when the political parties are 

changed. As town elections are non-partisan, these old envelopes may be used for local elections. 

G.L. c. 54, §§ 87, 88. 

 

Accessible Voting Equipment 

Every election must be accessible to voters with disabilities. The Elections Division has provided 

AutoMARK accessible marking devices to each community. The AutoMARK must be 

programmed prior to each election. 

 

In communities where paper hand-counted ballots are used, the clerk will need to prepare a 

supply of ballots which may be used with the AutoMARK. 

 

Tallying Materials 

In towns where ballots are counted by hand, the clerk will need to have tally sheets and enough 

envelopes to hold the ballots in convenient blocks. Block tally envelops and tally sheets may be 

obtained from the Elections Division. G.L. c. 54, § 105; 950 CMR § 52.04. 



7 
 

 

Ballot Tabulators 

In towns where electronic tabulators are used to count the ballots, clerks will need to ensure that 

the tabulators are programmed for the election. No later than four days before the election, all 

tabulators to be used must be tested in accordance with 950 CMR § 54.02. 

 

Ballot Containers and Seals 

After polls have been closed and ballots have been counted, the ballots must be contained and 

placed under tamper-evident seal. Clerks must provide containers or envelopes for the ballots, as 

well as seals for the poll workers to use at the end of the night. Ballots must be kept in a secure 

location until they can legally be disposed of. G.L. c. 54, § 107. 

 

Recounts 

In the event of a close election, recount petitions may be needed for those seeking a recount of 

the election. Recount petitions cannot be sent electronically, so clerks should check that they 

have recount petitions before the election and order additional petitions from the Elections 

Division if needed. G.L. c. 54, § 135. 

 

If a recount is scheduled, clerks should ensure that there are enough tally sheets and envelopes 

on hand for all the ballots being recounted. 

 

 

V. ON & AFTER ELECTION DAY 
 

Polling Hours 

Polling hours are set by the selectmen when the warrant is issued. The General Laws require that 

polling locations be open for no fewer than four hours in any town election. Further, polling 

places may open no earlier than 5:45 a.m. and no later than 12:00 p.m. All polls must be closed 

no later than 8:00 p.m. G.L. c. 54, § 64. 

 

Oaths 

Officers elected at the town election, except for the town clerk, may be sworn-in on the day after 

the election by the town clerk or the moderator. The moderator may be sworn-in only by the 

town clerk. 

 

The town clerk may take his or her oath of office no sooner than the seventh day after the 

election. The town clerk may be sworn-in by the moderator or by a justice of the peace.  

G.L. c. 41, § 107. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



8 
 

VI. APPENDIX 

 
Sample Warrant 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
 

SS. 

 

To either of the Constables of the Town of ____________________________________ 

 

 GREETINGS: 

 

In the name of the Commonwealth, you are hereby required to notify and warn the inhabitants of the town 

who are qualified to vote in the election, to vote at: 

 

 [Insert precinct numbers] 

 

 [Insert polling locations] 

 

on [day, e.g. “FIFTH”] [month]  [year] from  [opening time]  to [closing time] for the following purpose: 
 

To cast their votes in the [annual or special] election for the candidates for the following offices 

and on the following questions: 
    

OFFICES 
[List offices and districts as they will appear on the ballot] 

 

BALLOT QUESTIONS (If any) 
[List all ballot questions which will appear on the ballot, as they will appear] 

 

 Hereof fail not and make return of this warrant with your doings thereon at the time and place of 

said voting. 

 

 Given under our hands this _________________ day of [month],[year]. 
                             

 

_____________________________________      _____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________      _____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________      _____________________________________ 

 

                                           Selectmen of: ________________[Town]_______________________ 

   

 

________________[Indicate method of service of warrant_____________________ 

 

_____________[Constable]______________      ________[Date]________ 

                                                                                

 

 



9 
 

Town Election Calendar Template 

Citation Event Date 

G.L. c. 41, § 10 
Last day for selectmen to notify to clerk of any 

vacancies to be placed on the ballot 

15 days before the last day to 

submit nomination papers to the 

registrars 

G.L. c. 53, § 9A Last day to obtain nomination papers* 

48 weekday hours before the last 

day to file nomination papers with 

the registrars 

G.L. c. 53, § 7 
Last day to submit nomination papers to the board of 

registrars 

14 days before the last day to file 

nomination papers with the clerk 

G.L. c. 53, § 10 Last day to file nomination papers with the clerk 35 days before the election 

G.L. c. 53, § 11; G.L. 

c. 55B, § 7 
Last day to object to nomination papers or withdraw 

Two working days after the last 

day to file nomination papers with 

the clerk 

G.L. c. 51, §§ 26, 28 Last day to register to vote 10 days before the election** 

G.L. c. 39, § 10 Last day to post the warrant 7 days before the election 

G.L. c. 54, § 89;  

G.L. c. 54, § 25B 

Last day to apply for a mail-in ballot (absentee or 

early) 
5th business day before the election 

G.L. c. 54 § 89 
Last day and hour to apply for in-person absentee 

ballot 

Noon the day before the election. 

If the day before is Sunday or a 

Holiday then 5:00 P.M. on the last 

day the office is open 

 

*If the town has accepted G.L. c. 53, § 9A. 

**If town meeting & election are called on the same warrant and the meeting occurs first, 10 days before the town 

meeting. 

 

NOTE: The above calendar is intended for internal use. For calendars released to the public, it 

may be best to remove certain events, in order to avoid confusion. For example, the last day to 

post the warrant is for the clerk and selectmen only; inclusion of this date may confuse 

candidates.  

 

Further, most towns do not require candidates to physically collect their nomination papers from 

the registrars and submit them to the clerks. If this is not required of candidates, publishing the 

last day to submit the papers to the clerk may cause confusion for candidates. It is still important 

to calculate this date, as other deadlines are dependent upon it. 



The Commonwealth of Massachusetts
William Francis Galvin, Secretary of the Commonwealth 

Elections Division 

One Ashburton Place, Room 1705, Boston, Massachusetts 02108 • (617) 727-2828 

Election Advisory #22-01 
Changes to State Election Laws 

June 23, 2022 

The purpose of this Advisory is to familiarize local election officials with changes to state 
election laws that will impact the 2022 State Primaries and State Election, as well as upcoming 
local elections. 

This Advisory includes a first-glance summary of changes that will directly affect how you, as a 
local election official, will carry out your duties. Additional information and specifics will be 
provided in the coming weeks and months, as different aspects of the new law go into effect 
and as new regulations are promulgated. 

The VOTES Act 
On June 22, 2022, an election reform law titled “The VOTES Act” was signed into law. Among 
other things, the VOTES Act makes several of the temporary changes from the pandemic 
permanent, so many of these policies and procedures will be familiar to those of you 
administering elections in 2020. The new law also makes the absentee voting process and early 
voting by mail processes consistent.  

Voter Registration Deadlines 
Beginning July 22, 2022, the voter registration deadline for all elections and town meetings will 
be 10 calendar days before the date of the meeting or election.  

Local election officials will still be required to hold in-person registration sessions on the last 
day to register to vote, which for any Tuesday election will now be a Saturday, but the 
registration session will end at 5 p.m. instead of 8 p.m. 

For cities and towns with more than 1,500 voters, the registration session must be held from 9 
a.m. until 5 p.m. For towns with fewer than 1,500 voters, the registration session must be held
from 9 a.m. until 11 a.m. and from 3 p.m. until 5 p.m.

Agenda Item:  7B2



2 

 

Poll Worker Appointments 
Effectively immediately, there is additional flexibility for the appointment of poll workers. 
 
If, six weeks before an election, it is determined that there are not enough election officers 
appointed, the appointing authority (board of selectmen, city council, board of election 
commissioners) may appoint poll workers without regard to political party affiliation, voter 
registration status, residence, or inclusion on a list from a local party committee. 
 
If, three weeks before an election, there are still not enough poll workers appointed, the clerk 
will be able to fill vacancies by appointing any competent person, without regard to party, 
residence, or a list from a local party committee. 
 
Further, you now have the option to eliminate the use of a check-out table if you choose to do 
so. If you do not use a check-out table, however, you must still have a poll worker stationed at 
the ballot box. 
 
If poll workers are appointed without regard to party affiliation, the inspectors at the check-in 
table (and check-out, if used) cannot be of the same political party. If poll workers are 
appointed from lists from the parties, the inspectors must be of different political parties.  
 
Police Officer Assignments 
Effective immediately, the law regarding assignment of police officers at polling places is 
amended to require the board of selectmen, town council, or city council to assign police 
officers and constables to polling places. Previously, this was the responsibility of the chief of 
police.  
 
Since this change is taking effect before the primaries, you will need to communicate with your 
selectmen or council to make sure they detail officers at a summer meeting before September. 
 

Vote by Mail 
Effective immediately, early voting by mail must be available for all state elections, state 
primaries, and presidential primaries.  
 
Early voting by mail is also required for all local elections and preliminaries, unless the city or 
town opts out. In order to opt out of Vote by Mail for a local election, the selectmen, city 
council, or town council must hold a public hearing and public roll call vote to NOT allow Vote 
by Mail no later than 45 days before the date of the election. Cities and towns cannot opt out 
of Vote by Mail for a local election if the election is happening on the same day as a state 
election, state primary, or presidential primary. 
 
Applications 
As in 2020, the Elections Division will be mailing Vote by Mail applications at least 45 days 
before every regular state primary, state election, and presidential primary. The applications 
will be sent to everyone registered to vote by the 60th day before the election who has not 



3 

 

already applied for a ballot. The applications will be pre-addressed to the local election office 
and postage pre-paid. 
 
Unlike previous years, family members are now allowed to request an early Vote by Mail ballot 
on a voter’s behalf, as they currently can with absentee ballots. Similarly, family members are 
now permitted to return an early Vote by Mail ballot for the voter as well. 
 
Applications to Vote by Mail must be posted every city and town website, as well as on the 
Secretary of the Commonwealth’s website.  
 
Any form of written communication requesting a ballot is sufficient. Applications may be signed 
electronically, as long as the signature is written in substantially the same manner as a hand-
written signature. 
 
Effective immediately, you are required to include Vote by Mail applications with all 
acknowledgement notices sent to any new voter or anyone who has changed their address. 
Note that unlike 2020, these applications must be sent all year round, and not only to voters 
who register or move after the statewide application mailing has been sent.  
 
Online Portals 
The Elections Division will also be required to establish an online ballot request portal for voters 
to use to request their ballots online. The law states that a wet signature cannot be required for 
this portal. Additional information on the portal will be provided after the Secretary’s 
Information Technology Division is able to examine the requirements in the law. 
 
A portal for UOCAVA voters to request their ballots and submit ballots electronically will also be 
required, though that part of the law does not go into effect this year. More information on 
that will be provided after the 2022 elections. 
 
Application Deadlines 
The deadline to receive a request for any ballot (early or absentee) to be mailed is now 5 
business days before the election. A business day is any weekday that is not a legal holiday, so 
this will typically fall one week before Election Day. 
 
For the September 6th State Primary, because Labor Day is not a business day, the deadline for 
you to receive vote by mail applications is 5 p.m. Monday, August 29th.  
 
For the November 8th State Election, the deadline for you to receive vote by mail applications is 
5 p.m. Tuesday, November 1st. 
 
No ballots can be mailed to any voter whose application has not been received by 5 p.m. on the 
5th business day before the election. Remember, however, that in-person early voting is still 
available until the Friday before the election for applicable elections and in-person absentee 
voting is still available until noon on the day before the election (if that day isn’t a holiday). 



4 

 

Additionally, voters admitted to a health care facility after 12pm on the 7th day before the 
election can request a hand-delivered absentee ballot up until the close of polls. 
 
Accessible Vote by Mail 
Effective immediately, voters who have a disability which prevents them from being able to 
independently mark a paper ballot are allowed to request a reasonable accommodation. 
Additional information on accessible voting by mail will be forthcoming.  
 
Ballot Envelopes 
Return ballot envelopes (AV-8s) for state primaries, state elections, and presidential primaries 
are now pre-addressed and postage pre-paid.  
 
This means that any AV-8 return ballot envelopes provided by this office need to be printed 
specifically for your community. It will be very important for you to be aware of your inventory 
and provide as much notice as possible to the Elections Division if you are running low.   
 
Ballot Return 
For most elections, all ballots will still have to be returned by close of polls on Election Day. 
Beginning with the 2022 State Election, ballots will be able to arrive up to 3 days after Election 
Day for biennial state elections only. This means that ballots mailed from inside the country can 
be counted if they are postmarked by Election Day and received by 5 p.m. on the Friday after 
Election Day. Again, this is only for biennial state elections, which are the November federal 
elections held in even-numbered years.  
 
This year, because the Friday after the election is a holiday, the deadline for ballots to be 
received is 5 p.m. on Saturday, November 12th. We realize this deadline creates logistical issues 
and we are in the process of exploring our options. More information will be provided as soon 
as we have it. 
 
Ballots returned by hand, to a drop box, or electronically still need to be received by your office 
by close of polls on Election Day for all elections. 
 
Ballot Processing 
Similar to 2020, you now have the option of advance removing ballots from their envelopes and 
advance depositing ballots into the tabulator or ballot box ahead of Election Day. All ballot 
removal and depositing before Election Day will still need to happen in public sessions. The 
Elections Division will be issuing regulations, likely similar to those used in 2020, on advance 
processing and more information will be provided when that happens. 
 
Deceased Voters 
Since ballots will begin to be processed before Election Day, the law prohibiting counting the 
ballot of anyone who dies before Election Day has been repealed. A voter’s ballot can be 
counted as long as the voter was alive when it was cast, which means as of the postmark date 
or when it was hand-delivered or deposited into a drop box.  



5 

 

In-Person Early Voting 
In-person early voting must now be offered for all regular state primaries, state elections, and 
presidential primaries.  It must also be offered for special elections and primaries to fill 
vacancies for U.S. Senate or Congress. In-person early voting must also be held for any 
municipal elections being held on the same day as one of the above listed elections. 
 
In-Person Early Voting Dates 
In-person early voting for biennial state elections must be held from the 17th day through the 
4th day before the election. In 2022, the early voting period for the November 8th State Election 
will begin on Saturday, October 22nd and end on Friday, November 4th. 
 
Early voting for state and presidential primaries will begin on the 10th day before the primary 
and end on the 4th day before the primary. Early voting for the September 6th State Primary will 
begin on Saturday, August 27th (the same day as the voter registration deadline) and end on 
Friday, September 2nd. 
 
In-Person Early Voting Hours 
The requirements for early voting hours have changed to require weekend hours and set 
standards for weekday hours. Please note that these are minimum hours and you can always 
increase the in-person early voting hours.  
 
On weekends, the number of hours you must be open depends on the number of registered 
voters in your community. The required minimum hours for weekends are: 
 
Number of Voters Required Weekend Early Voting Hours 

0 - 4,999  At least 1 day per weekend 
At least 2 hours each day you are open 
At least 4 hours total each weekend 

5,000 – 24,999 At least 1 day per weekend 
At least 3 hours per day you are open 
At least 6 hours total each weekend 

25,000 – 39,999 At least 4 hours each weekend day 

40,000 – 74,999 At least 6 hours each weekend day 

75,000+ At least 8 hours each weekend day 
 
For weekdays, the required minimum early voting hours will vary depending on the size of your 
community and at what point it is during the in-person early voting period. By default, the early 
voting hours are during your regular business hours; however, your city council, board of 
selectmen, or town council may have the option to limit early voting hours on certain days, if 
your community is small enough.  
 
 
 
 



6 

 

The required weekday early voting hours are: 
 
 
Number of Voters Required Weekday Early Voting Hours 

0 - 4,999  At least 25% of regular business hours 

5,000 – 39,999 Primary: Regular business hours 
 
State Election: 
Week 1: at least 50% of regular business hours 
Week 2: Regular business hours 

40,000+ During your regular business hours 
 
 
In order to limit your early voting hours, your board of selectmen, city council, or town council 
will need to vote to do so at a public meeting held no later than 20 days before early voting 
begins. For the November 8, 2022 State Election, the deadline to take that vote is Sunday, 
October 2, 2022. 
 
Early Voting Locations 
Minor changes have been made to the law regarding the designation of early voting sites. As 
has been the case previously, your local election office is the default early voting site in your 
community. If your office is determined to be unsuitable or inaccessible, the registrars must 
vote to hold early voting in a different location. You can also designate additional early voting 
locations, which must also be accessible. 
 
When assigning early voting sites, your city or town must now consider, to the extent feasible, 
diverse geographic locations and whether the sites would have an impact on access to the polls 
on the basis of race, national origin, disability, income, or age. Unlike the assignment of polling 
places in 2020, no written report on the impact of the early voting locations is required. 
 
Your early voting sites must be designated no later than 2 weeks before early voting begins.  
 
Notice Requirements 
You will also need to publish notice of the locations and schedule for early voting at least 5 
business days before early voting begins and at least once during the early voting period.  
 
Notice must be posted: in your office or on the city/town bulletin board; in any other public 
building considered necessary; on the city/town’s website; and on the Secretary’s website. 
Remember, you need to enter your hours and locations into VRIS (or notify the Elections 
Division by email, if that VRIS screen is locked) for them to be posted on our website. 
 
 
 
 



7 

 

The deadlines for early voting posting for 2022 are: 
 

State Primary 
Designate Early Voting sites & schedule: Saturday, August 13, 2022 
Post 1st Notice: Monday, August 22, 2022 
Post 2nd Notice: August 27 – September 2 

 
State Election 
Designate Early Voting sites & schedule: Saturday, October 8, 2022 
Post 1st Notice: Monday, October 17, 2022 
Post 2nd Notice: October 22 – November 4 

 
Local Elections 
For local elections, cities and towns may choose to have in-person early voting. To opt-in to 
early voting for local elections, at least two registrars need to recommend it, and the board of 
selectmen, town council, or city council must then vote to authorize in-person early voting.  
 
The vote to opt-in to early voting must take place no later than 5 days before early voting 
would begin, and must include the early voting schedule. Early voting can begin no earlier than 
the 17th day before the election or preliminary and can end no later than 2 business days before 
the election. Early voting for local elections default to your usual business hours, unless the 
vote specifies otherwise. 
 
Sites for early voting for local elections will be designated by the clerk. The location(s) and early 
voting schedule must be posted no less than 48 weekday hours before early voting begins. 
 
150 Foot Rule 
Beginning with early voting for the September 6th State Primary, the 150 foot rule prohibiting 
campaigning around polling places will be extended to early voting sites as well. This means 
that there shall be no campaigning for or against a candidate or question on the ballot for that 
election within 150 feet of the entrance to the early voting site during voting hours. Signature 
gathering of any kind will also be prohibited during the voting hours. 
 

Jail-Based Voting 
While voters who are incarcerated for a reason other than a felony conviction can already vote 
by absentee ballot, the new law contains provisions to make voting easier for those who are 
incarcerated, including adding requirements to correctional facilities to distribute information. 
Changes to jail-based voting take effect at the beginning of 2023 and more information will be 
provided after the 2022 elections. 
 

Automatic Voter Registration 

Beginning on January 1, 2023, applicants at the RMV will no longer have the option to opt out 
of automatic voter registration. Instead, the RMV will be required to transmit the names and 



8 

 

addresses of all eligible citizen applicants to local election officials for voter registration 
purposes. 
 
Applicants who are automatically registered to vote will now be allowed to decline registration 
only after receiving the acknowledgment notice you send to them. 
 



2023 Quick Informal Poll - Municipal Elections

Towns Opting Out of Mail-In Voting

Avon

Barre

Berkley

Bernardston

Boxborough

Braintree

Brimfield

Brookfield

Cummington

Danvers

Dighton

Foxborough

Georgetown

Groton

Hardwick

Lanesborough

Lee

Millbury

Milton

Nahant

Northbridge

Rockland 

Saugus

Scituate

Shelburne

Stow 

Sturbridge

Wales

Wareham

West Bridgewater

West Brookfield

Wrentham

Chelmsford

Dennis

Melrose

Paxton

Randolph

Sharon

Townsend

Agenda Item:  7B3



1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Darrin Tangeman, Town Manager 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  February 28, 2023 
 
ITEM:  Review and Discussion of Town Meeting Articles and Discussion on Fall Special Town 
Meeting 
 
EXPLANATION: The Warrant for the Annual Town Meeting to be held on Tuesday, April 25, 
2023, at Truro Central School, opened on Wednesday, January 25, 2023, and closed on 
Thursday, February 23, 2023.  The deadline for Money Articles was Thursday, February 2, 
2023. Staff has prepared a preliminary list of articles for the Board’s review that include 
customary articles, articles that are being prepared by staff and articles from boards and 
committees. Additions of articles may be identified by staff over the next couple of weeks 
and/or the Select Board may identify additional articles that they wish to bring forward. Some 
articles may also be deferred.  
 The Board is asked to review the preliminary list of articles and notify staff of any 
additions that may be necessary. The FY2023 Select Board Goals & Objectives are included for 
the Board to review to determine if there are any objectives that will require the preparation 
of a Town Meeting article. Over the coming month, article language will be refined, reviewed 
by Town Counsel, and presented to the Board for consideration, changes, and ultimately votes 
to recommend.  
 The preliminary list of articles includes all petitioned articles that were submitted by the 
deadline. The petitioned articles are included in the packet for the Board’s situational 
awareness. They will be reviewed by Town Counsel and presented to the Board for its vote to 
recommend at a subsequent meeting.   
 The Board may also wish to discuss the possibility of a fall 2023 Special Town Meeting. A 
future vote regarding the commitment to hold a special town meeting would be helpful for 
staff, boards and committees, and citizens in preparing articles that may be appropriate for 

 

Agenda Item:  7C 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

that time. To date, staff anticipates that articles related to plans for the Walsh Property, the 
Local Comprehensive Plan, as well as general bylaw amendments will be ready for the fall. 
Funding for Special Town Meeting/ Special Town Election (if necessary) is tentatively included 
in the FY2024 budget. 
 Finally, staff wishes to encourage the Select Board to consider holding more than the 
two regularly scheduled meetings in March to allow for ample time to discuss, change, and 
vote to recommend articles. This can be further discussed during the agenda setting portion of 
the meeting. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED: None. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION: Discussion only. The Board may wish to direct staff to include an agenda 
item in an upcoming agenda to further discuss a Special Town Meeting.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Citizen’s Petition-Community Livability and Sustainability Article 
2. Citizen’s Petition-Comprehensive Out-of-School Program 
3. Citizen’s Petition-Dog Restraint Regulations 
4. Citizen’s Petition-Mill Pond Restoration Project 
5. Citizen’s Petition-Zoning Bylaw Amendment Sec 50-2-B-2 
6. Citizen’s Petition-Proposed Charter Change to amend Section 5-4-2 
7. Draft Preliminary Articles for 2023 Town Meeting  
8. FY2023 Select Board Goals and Objectives 



Agenda Item:  7C1





Agenda Item:  7C2





Agenda Item:  7C3









Agenda Item:  7C4









Agenda Item:  7C5





Agenda Item:  7C6



















TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

INTRODUCTION 

Truro’s Town Meeting Guide 

Message from the Select Board  

Message from the Finance Committee 

Terms Used in Municipal Finance 

Affordable Housing-Related Funds 

Fiscal Year 2024 Five Year Capital Improvement Overview 

Five-Year Debt Schedule: FY2024- FY2028 

GREETING 

CUSTOMARY & FINANCIAL ARTICLES 

Article 1: Authorization to Hear the Report of Multi-member Bodies 

Article 2: Authorization to Set the Salary of the Select Board 

Article 3: Authorization to Set the Salary of the Moderator 

Article 4: Amendments to the FY2023 Operating Budget Funded by Free Cash (To 
Include Snow/Ice Deficit)  

Article 5: FY2024 Omnibus Budget Appropriation 

Article 6: Transfer of Funds from Free Cash 

SECTION 1: TO REDUCE OR STABILIZE THE FY2024 TAX RATE 

SECTION 2: TO THE OPEB TRUST FUND 

SECTION 3: TO THE CAPITAL EXPENSE STABILIZATION FUND 

SECTION 4: TO STABILIZATION FUND 

SECTION 5: TO FUND FALL 2023 SPECIAL TOWN MEETING/ ELECTION 

SECTION 6: TO FUND NORTH JETTY REMEDIATION 

SECTION 7: TO FUND OPIOID PROGRAM IN ADVANCE OF FUTURE RECEIPTS 

SECTION 8: TO REPLACE THE EXTERIOR DOORS AT TRURO CENTRAL 
SCHOOL 

SECTION 9: TO FUND THE PUBLIC SAFETY FACILITY REPAIR PROJET 



SECTION 10: TO FUND AMBULANCE TRANSPORT PROGRAM COSTS IN 
ADVANCE OF FUTURE AMBULANCE RECEIPTS 

SECTION 11: TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT ACCOUNT AND SIGN ON BONUSES 

SECTION 12: TO FUND A STUDY OF PRIVATE WELLS IN POND VILLAGE 

SECTION 13: TO FUND A COMPREHENSIVE WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT 
PLAN 

Article 7: General Override for Emergency Medical Services/ Ambulance 
Transport 

Article 8: General Override to Maintain Existing Services and Provide Adequate 
Wages 

Article 9: General Override for New Community Sustainability Programs and 
Services (to include Pre-Kindergarten Program at Truro Central School, Birth 
through Four-Year Childcare Voucher Program, Out-of-School Time Program, and 
Housing Coordinator) 

Article 10: General Override for Student Resource Officer 

Article 11: Shellfish Revolving Fund 

Article 12: Council on Aging Revolving Fund 

Article X: Establish Special Revenue Fund for Burn Permits Fees 

Article X: Establish Special Revenue Fund for Ambulance Receipts 

Article X: Authorization to Expend Funds in Anticipation of Reimbursement for 
State Highway Assistance Aid 

Article X: Dissolve Affordable Housing Trust Fund Established Under Chapter 274 
in the Acts of 2002 

Article X: Transfer of Funds from the Housing Stabilization Fund to the Affordable 
Housing Trust Fund 

REAPPROPRIATION ARTICLES 

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION ACT ARTICLES 

Article X: Community Preservation Act: Contribution to the Affordable Housing 
Trust Fund 

Article X: Community Preservation Act: Housing Consultant 

Article X: Community Preservation Act: Regional Contribution for 3 Jerome Smith 
Way, Provincetown 



Article X: Community Preservation Act: Congregational Cemetery Restoration 

Article X: Community Preservation Act: Historic Self-Guided Tour 

Article X: Community Preservation Act: Historic Cemetery Field Guide 

Article X: Community Preservation Act: Cobb Archive Library Gutters 

Article X: Community Preservation Act: Edgewood Farm Barn Chimneys and 
Cupola Preservation 

Article X: Community Preservation Act: Bunker Cottage/Corn Hill Boathouse 
Historic Preservation 

Article X: Community Preservation Act: Displays at Highland House Museum 

Article X: Community Preservation Act: Administrative Support 

LAND ACQUISITION ARTICLES 

PERSONNEL BYLAW ARTICLES 

Article 31: Amend Personnel Bylaw 8.1 Holidays (Juneteenth) 

ACCEPTANCE OF MASSACHUSETTS GENERAL LAW ARTICLES 

Article X: Accept M.G.L. c. 44, §53E Agencies, boards, etc.; annual operating 
costs; offset by estimated receipts of user fees  

Article X: Accept M.G.L. c. 40, §22F License fees; service charges; acceptance of 
section 

Article 34: Accept M.G.L. c. 60, §62A Municipalities; payment agreements and 
Adopt Associated General Bylaw 

GENERAL BYLAW AMENDMENT ARTICLES 

Article X: Curb Cut Enforcement 

Article X: Rental Registration Enforcement 

Article X: General Bylaw Amendment of Chapter IX of the Town of Truro General 
Bylaws, entitled “Stretch Energy Code” with “Specialized Energy Code” 

CHARTER AMENDMENT ARTICLES 

Article X: Charter Amendment regarding Muti-Member Body Goals, Objectives 
and Progress 

Article X: Charter Amendment to Add New Section 6-3-2 that the Planning Board 
Hold Annual Meeting on Priorities 



Article X: Charter Amendment regarding Elected Body Term Lengths (Planning 
Board and Truro Housing Authority) 

ZONING BYLAW ARTICLES 

Article X: Amend Zoning Bylaw §10.4 Definitions- Street Definition and Add New 
Bylaw §30.11 Streets and Frontage 

Article X: Amend Zoning Bylaw §40.1 Duplex Houses and Apartments 

HOME RULE PETITION ARTICLES 

PETITIONED ARTICLES 

Article X: Amend Zoning Bylaw §50.2.B.2 Building Gross Floor Area for the 
Residential District- Petitioned Article 

Article X: Mill Pond Salt Marsh Restoration Project- Petitioned Article 

Article X: Amend Charter Section 5-4-2 to Library Director Appointment- 
Petitioned Article  

Article X: Community Livability and Sustainability- Petitioned Article 

Article X: Comprehensive Out-of-School Program- Petitioned Article 

Article X: Add Dog Restraint Regulation-Petitioned Article 

ANNUAL TOWN ELECTION 

POSTING OF THE WARRANT 

APPENDIX A: OMNIBUS BUDGET- FISCAL YEAR 2024 

APPENDIX B: CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET OF PROJECTED CAPITAL 
NEEDS FY2024- FY2028 



TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666 

Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124 Fax: 508-349-5505 
                                                                               
 

      

  Page 1 of 6 

Values and 
Fiscal Year 2023 Goals and Objectives  

 
VALUES: 
 
The Town of Truro holds the following values that inform our approach to governance and 
municipal services. They are the guiding principles that drive all of the activities undertaken by 
any staff, volunteer, elected or appointed official in the Town of Truro.  They embody our beliefs 
and our highest aspirations.   
 
Excellence:  
We strive to provide the highest quality services that are responsive to the needs of all residents 
and visitors.   
 
Integrity:  
We hold ourselves to high ethical standards and commit to acting with civility at all times and to 
behave lawfully, respectfully, honestly and fairly.   
 
Openness and Transparency:  
We commit to sharing information, working inclusively and to holding ourselves accountable.   
 
Collaboration: 
We believe in working with others to solve problems and address community need both locally 
and regionally. 
 
Sustainability: 
We strive for the integration of environmental health and protection, social equity and diversity, 
economic vitality, and fiscal integrity of the community to create a thriving and resilient 
community for generations to come. 
 
 
GOALS AND OBJECTIVES: 
 
Each year, as a way of articulating policy and priorities, the Truro Select Board develops goals 
and objectives.  These goals and objectives are intended to prioritize the Select Board’s efforts 
and to provide guidance and direction to the Town Manager and their appointees, the Police and 
Fire Chiefs, and the Town’s multi-member bodies.  
 



TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666 

Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124 Fax: 508-349-5505 
                                                                               
 

      

  Page 2 of 6 

Last year, due to a delayed Town Meeting and Town Election, the Goals and Objectives process 
was completed later than the start of the fiscal year, and as such, many of the Board’s goals and 
objectives from FY2022 were identified as goals that should continue into FY2023. 
In accordance with Town Charter, the Select Board held a public meeting on July 12, 2022. The 
Board also held a work session to modify existing objectives and identify new objectives. 
Finally, on July 12, 2022, the Select Board finalized and prioritized the FY2023 Goals & 
Objectives for July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. The objectives identified may contribute to 
the eventual completion of one goal or of multiple goals and are labeled to demonstrate the goals 
targeted by specific objectives.  
 
FY2023 Goals 
 
The Town of Truro will support policies and programs that: 
 

A) foster sustainable and appropriate economic development. 
B) create more affordable year-round places for people to live and work. 
C) protect and restore our fragile environment. 
D) use long term and strategic planning to guarantee the future health and well-being of our 

community. 
E) proactively engage and involve the town residents, property and business owners. 

 
 
FY2023 Objectives 
The following objectives are presented in order of priority and a Select Board Ambassador was 
identified for each objective.  
 

1. To maintain vital EMS services on the Outer Cape the Select Board will support a 
workplan and synchronized transition plan to include 1) establish a plan and timeline for 
the Town to provide EMS services without the auxiliary support of Lower Cape with the 
support of a consultant; 2) hire the four paramedics approved at Annual Town Meeting; 
3) collaborate with Lower Cape Ambulance Association and Provincetown to meet the 
plan and timeline and prepare a contract that will facilitate this plan and timeline; 4) 
evaluate potential areas for regionalization. 

Goals Addressed: D, E 
Select Board Ambassador: Robert Weinstein  

 
 

2. The Select Board will direct staff to apply for ARPA funds for the Broadband Needs 
Assessment Study by October 1, 2022. 

Goals Addressed: A, D, E 
Select Board Ambassador: John Dundas 



TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666 

Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124 Fax: 508-349-5505 
                                                                               
 

      

  Page 3 of 6 

 
3. The Select Board will review all Town owned land to assess possibilities for municipal 

use, housing, economic development open space, and/or possible disposition to be 
completed by October 1, 2022. 

Goals Addressed: A, B 
Select Board Ambassador: Kristen Reed 
 
 

4. The Select Board will review the efficacy of and the participation in the childcare voucher 
program by November 30, 2022 and will make recommendations for the 2023 Annual 
Town Meeting and the FY2024 budget process By December 31, 2022. 

Goals Addressed: A, D, E 
Select Board Ambassador: Stephanie Rein 
 
 

5. The Select Board will support and encourage projects that protect and restore our coastal 
environment including these current and ongoing projects:  

• Pamet River Tidal Flow Restoration and Watershed Study 
• East Harbor Culvert Replacement 
• Mill Pond and Eagle Creek Repairs and Improvement 
• Little Pamet Watershed Study and Culvert Repair 
• Coastal Management 

Goals Addressed: C 
Select Board Ambassador: Stephanie Rein 

 
 

6. To improve Town employee recruitment and retention the Select Board will implement 
and integrate the findings of the comprehensive compensation analysis and enter into 
associated Collective Bargaining Agreement negotiation and Non-union personnel 
reclassifications. 

Goals Addressed: A, D 
Select Board Ambassador: Kristen Reed 

 
 

7. The Select Board will work with the Walsh Property Community Planning Committee and 
the Local Comprehensive Plan Committee to build on areas of common ground and build 
consensus on the specific initiatives and a more general vision for Truro with special 
consideration of the Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Production Plan. 

Goals Addressed: A, B, C, D, E 
Select Board Ambassador: Susan Areson  

 



TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666 

Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124 Fax: 508-349-5505 
                                                                               
 

      

  Page 4 of 6 

8. The Select Board will work with the Housing Authority and the Housing Consultant to 
develop a Housing Playbook by June 30, 2023. 

Goals Addressed: A, B, D, E 
Select Board Ambassador: Kristen Reed 

 
 

9. Upon completion of the Local Comprehensive Plan, the Select Board and Town Manager 
will work jointly to create a Town mission statement. 

Goals Addressed: D 
Select Board Ambassador: Susan Areson 
 

 
10. The Select Board will provide support to and collaborate with the Climate Action 

Committee and the Energy Committee on the goals of creating a Climate Action Plan for 
the Town of Truro, and researching the hiring of a Climate Action Agent, as well as to 
work with the Climate Action Committee to develop a policy memorandum that facilitates 
and guides progress in all relevant areas toward a “Net Zero Truro” by 2050, and will 
ask for updates at least twice per year. The Board will also revise the charges of the 
Energy Committee and the Climate Action Committee to incorporate the directives from 
Article 53 of the 2022 Annual Town Meeting. 

Goals Addressed: A, C, D, E 
Select Board Ambassador: Stephanie Rein 

 
 

11. The Select Board will submit a letter each to the Planning Board and the Economic 
Development Committee by December 31, 2022 outlining the Select Board’s priorities in 
housing, zoning, land use and economic development in an effort facilitate collaboration 
and joint efforts.   

Goals Addressed: A, B, C 
Select Board Ambassador: John Dundas 

 
 

12. The Select Board will review the Senior Needs Assessment, invite feedback from the 
community on specific programs and services requested, and explore the feasibility and 
the cost and social impact of expanding services and programs for seniors to inform the 
FY2024 budget process. 

Goals Addressed: A, D, E 
Select Board Ambassador: Stephanie Rein 

 
 



TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666 

Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124 Fax: 508-349-5505 
                                                                               
 

      

  Page 5 of 6 

13. The Select Board will hold joint work sessions with participation from the Truro Housing 
Authority, Planning Board and Zoning Board of Appeals to develop housing initiatives 
that will diversify the range of seasonal, year-round and transitional housing for people 
of varying income levels and will develop related articles for the 2023 Annual Town 
Meeting.  The Select Board will provide an update on these efforts at least semi-annually. 

Goals Addressed: B, D 
Select Board Ambassador: Susan Areson 

 
 

14. The Select Board will initiate a revised cost estimate of a multi-phased approach for a 
new Department of Public Works Facility at a yet to be determined site in the FY2024- 
FY2028 Capital Improvement Plan. By December 31, 2022, the Town Manager will work 
with the Public Works Director to welcome the public to site visits of the current Public 
Works Facility via in-person visits and virtual visits.  

Goals Addressed: D 
Select Board Ambassador: Robert Weinstein 

 
 

15. The Select Board will promote the Local Comprehensive Planning Committee and 
process along with the work of the Economic Development Committee and encourage 
community participation and will provide regular updates. 

Goals Addressed: A, D 
Select Board Ambassador: Susan Areson 
 

 
16. The Select Board will rework, update and set clearer objectives in Policy 54 and Policy 

31, and will work to enhance compliance.  
Goals Addressed: E 
Select Board Ambassador: Susan Areson 

 
 

17. Through the Town of Truro representatives to the Provincetown Water & Sewer Board, 
the Select Board will encourage steps toward full cycle water usage for Provincetown 
and Truro, and a status report will be given at least annually at the Select Boards’ joint 
meeting. The Town's Water Resources Consultant may be invited to participate.  

Goals Addressed: A, C, D, E 
Select Board Ambassador: John Dundas 

 
 

 



TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666

Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124 Fax: 508-349-5505

Page 6 of 6 

18. The Select Board will provide resources in the FY2023 budget to increase the digitization
of town services and records, and address cybersecurity and will lay the groundwork for
a five-year digitization and cyber security plan that will be initiated in FY2024. The
Select Board Ambassador working with the Town Manager and IT Director will provide
an outline to present at a Select Board meeting prior to beginning the FY2024 Budget
Process.

Goals Addressed: A, D, E 
Select Board Ambassador: John Dundas 

19. The Select Board will develop and implement a “Civility Pledge” that will be read at the
beginning of all meetings of the Select Board and all Select Board- appointed boards,
committees and commissions, and will request that elected boards do the same.

Goals Addressed: D, E 
Select Board Ambassador: Susan Areson 

20. The Select Board will task the Economic Development Committee with inviting the
Massachusetts Cultural Council to present to the Select Board, Economic Development
Committee and the Truro Cultural Council on the process of creating a designated
cultural district in Truro.

Goals Addressed: A 
Select Board Ambassador: Kristen Reed 

Truro Select Board 

_____________________________ _____________________________ 
Kristen Reed, Chair  Robert Weinstein, Vice-Chair 

_____________________________ _____________________________ 
John Dundas, Clerk  Susan Areson  

_____________________________ 
Stephanie Rein 



1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR: Katie Klein, KP Law, and Darrin Tangeman, Town Manager 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  February 28, 2023 
 
ITEM:  Review and Approve Herring River Intermunicipal Agreement 
 
EXPLANATION:  At the November 9, 2022 Select Board meeting, the Board determined it will 
mitigate/compensate for the .2 acres of National Seashore property on Old County Road in 
Truro affected by the Herring River project. As discussed, an Intermunicipal Agreement was 
prepared between Wellfleet and Truro, by Town Counsel Katie Klein of KP Law and is ready for 
the Board’s discussion/approval. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED: There will not be an Intermunicipal Agreement between the 
towns of Truro and Wellfleet related to the mitigation of the Herring River Restoration Project. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION: MOTION TO approve and electronically sign the Intermunicipal 
Agreement between Truro and Wellfleet.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Herring River IMA 

 

Agenda Item:  7D 
 
 
 
 



  Agenda Item: 7D1 

 

INTERMUNICIPAL AGREEMENT 

TOWN OF WELLFLEET – TOWN OF TRURO 

HERRING RIVER RESTORATION PROJECT 

 

This Intermunicipal Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of the _____ day 
________________, 2022, by and between the Town of Wellfleet, a Massachusetts 

municipal corporation, acting by and through its Selectboard, having an address of 300 

Main Street, Wellfleet, MA 02667, and the Town of Truro, a Massachusetts municipal 

corporation, acting by and through its Select Board, having an address of 24 Town Hall 

Road, Truro, MA 02666. 

 
Whereas, the Town of Wellfleet and the Cape Cod National Seashore (“Project 

Proponents”) are undertaking the Herring River Restoration Project (“Project”) to restore 

tidal flow to the river system, and revive the ecological and economic benefits provided 

by a healthy estuary;  

 

Whereas, the Project proposes to elevate three segments of low-lying roadway 
totaling approximately 617 linear feet, and replace two associated culverts in the Town of 

Truro (the “work”), as shown on Proposed Conditions Plan and Profile Sheets 48-52 of 

the plan set entitled Herring River Restoration Project, Low-Lying Roadways and 

Associated Elements Construction, Elevation of Bound Brook Island, Old County and 

Pole Dike Roads and Culvert Replacements, Wellfleet and Truro, Massachusetts, June 
2022, Prepared for Town of Wellfleet by WSP (96 Sheets), scale 1” = 40” or as noted, 

stamped by Clayton Carlisle (#45839) (the “Plans”), a copy of which is attached hereto 

as Exhibit A and incorporated herein, in order to facilitate tidal restoration and protect 

Town of Truro infrastructure; 

 
Whereas, road elevation work and a culvert replacement is proposed to occur on a 

parcel of land consisting of approximately 0.73 acres, more or less, located at 133 Old 

County Road in Truro, Massachusetts, as shown on Truro Assessors Map 59, Parcel 66, 

that is owned by the Town of Truro (the “Town Parcel”);  

 
Whereas, road elevation work is also proposed to occur in part on a parcel of land 

consisting of approximately 2.63 acres, more or less, located at 125A Old County Road 

in Truro, Massachusetts, as shown on Truro Assessors Map 59, Parcel 108, that is 

privately owned (the “Private Parcel”);  

 
Whereas, road elevation and a culvert replacement is proposed to occur on a 

portion of Town of Truro road located in the Cape Cod National Seashore which will 

affect approximately .2 acres of land, and which requires mitigation in the form of a land 

exchange with Cape Cod National Seashore;    



  Agenda Item: 7D1 

 

Whereas, the Project Proponents have discussed the Project and the work 
proposed with Truro representatives;   

 

Whereas, the Truro Select Board previously provided consent to allow the Project 

Proponents to describe the proposed work in permit applications to federal, state and/or 

local authorities; 
 

Whereas, temporary access for construction and permanent rights on the Town 

Parcel and the Private Parcel will be needed to undertake and complete the proposed 

work and fully achieve the benefits of tidal restoration and protect Town of Truro 

infrastructure; and 
 

Whereas, the Town of Wellfleet has obtained authority to enter into this Agreement 

by a vote of its Selectboard and the Town of Truro has obtained authority to enter into this 

Agreement by a vote of its Select Board, both pursuant to the provisions of G.L. c. 40, §4A. 

 
AGREEMENT 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the Town of Wellfleet 

and the Town of Truro (singly, a “party,” collectively, the "parties") agree as follows:  

1.  The Project Proponents will fully fund the cost of the work through grants 
and other funds obtained for the purpose of constructing the Herring River Restoration 

Project.  Except as provided herein, the Town of Truro shall not be responsible for any 

direct or indirect costs of the Project, and the Town of Wellfleet shall be responsible for 

all costs relating to the Project, including, but not limited to, preparation of this 

Agreement, including all attorneys’ fees; acquiring the easements and other approvals; 
any necessary permits; and preparation of any documents and plans acquiring easements 

on the Private Parcel.  

 

2.  The Town of Truro authorizes temporary access to the Town Parcel as 

needed for the purposes of completing work in compliance with permit requirements. 
 

3.  The Town of Truro authorizes the permanent alteration to the Town Parcel 

resulting from the work, as depicted on the Plans. 

 
4.  The Town of Truro will, in coordination with the Project Proponents, 

endeavor to obtain a permanent easement and a temporary easement on the Private Parcel 

in order to perform the work to be undertaken thereon, including, but not limited to, 

seeking Town Meeting approval for the acquisition of the permanent easement and the 

temporary easement needed on the Private Parcel, cooperating with the Project 
Proponents in reaching out to the owner of the Private Parcel regarding the easements 

needed, and executing and recording an Order of Taking for said easements or accepting 

such easements in a deed from the owner of the Private Parcel.  

 

5. The Project Proponents are authorized to direct a qualified contractor to 



  Agenda Item: 7D1 

undertake the proposed work on the properties in the Town of Truro.  Project Proponents 

and their contractor will coordinate construction-related activities with the Town of 
Truro’s Public Works Department, Police Department and Fire Department. 

 

6. The Town of Wellfleet will ensure that the Town of Truro is named as an 

“additional insured” on the liability insurance policy of any contractor who undertakes 

the proposed work on the Town Parcel and the Private Parcel.  
 

7. Following completion of the proposed work, the Town of Truro will be 

responsible for ongoing maintenance and monitoring of the road and culverts in the Town 

of Truro in accordance with the applicable environmental permits, and will have all 

necessary authorizations to undertake maintenance activities.   
  

8.  Where necessary, the Town of Truro agrees to provide signatures on 

permit applications or documents to indicate its assent, as owner of the Town Parcel.  

 

9. The Town of Truro agrees, at its sole cost and expense, to mitigate for the 
impact of the Project on the land of Cape Cod National Seashore, consisting of .2 acres, 

more or less, including, but not limited to, providing land in exchange for the affected 

property. 

 

10. Notwithstanding the final sentence of G.L. c. 40, §4A, the Town of 
Wellfleet shall indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Truro and each and all of its 

officials, officers, employees, boards, commissions, agents, servants and representatives 

(the “Indemnitees”) from and against any claim arising from or in connection with the 

performance by the Town of Truro of its obligations hereunder including, without 

limitation, any claim of liability, loss, damages, costs and expenses for personal injury or 
damage to real or personal property by reason of any act or omission by the Town of 

Truro.  Such indemnification shall include, without limitation, payment of all costs of 

defense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert witness fees, court costs and related 

expenses) as and when such costs become due and the amounts of any judgments, awards 

and/or settlements, provided that (a) the Town of Truro shall have the right to select 
counsel to defend against such claims, such counsel to be reasonably acceptable to the 

Town of Wellfleet and its insurer, if any, and to approve or reject any settlement with 

respect to which indemnification is sought, (b) the Indemnitees shall cooperate with the 

Town of Wellfleet in all reasonable respects in connection with such defense, and (c) the 
Town of Wellfleet shall not be responsible to pay any judgment, award or settlement to 

the extent occasioned by the intentional misconduct of Truro, its officials, officers, 

employees, boards, commissions, agents, servants and representatives. 

 

11. No party hereto shall assign or transfer any of its rights or interests in or to 
this Agreement, or delegate any of its obligations hereunder, without the prior written 

consent of the other party. 

 

12. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, or if any such term is so held when 



  Agenda Item: 7D1 

applied to any particular circumstance, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall 

not affect any other provision of this Agreement, or affect the application of such 
provision to any other circumstances, and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced 

as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision were not contained herein. 

 

13. The obligations and conditions set forth in this Agreement may be waived 

only by a writing signed by the party waiving such obligation or condition.  Forbearance 
or indulgence by a party shall not be construed as a waiver, nor limit the remedies that 

would otherwise be available to that party under this Agreement or applicable law.  No 

waiver of any breach or default shall constitute or be deemed evidence of a waiver of any 

subsequent breach or default. 

 
14. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 

the substantive law of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, without regard to the 

conflicts of law provisions thereof. 

 

15. Any notice permitted or required hereunder to be given or served on either 
party by the other shall be in writing signed in the name of or on behalf of the party 

giving or serving the same.  Notice shall be deemed to have been received at the time of 

actual receipt by hand delivery or three (3) business days after the date of any properly 

addressed notice sent by mail to the following: 

 
Town of Wellfleet    Town of Truro 

300 Main Street    24 Town Hall Road 

Wellfleet, MA 02667    Truro, MA 02666 

Attn: Selectboard     Attn: Select Board 

 
16. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 

concerning the subject matter hereof, superseding all prior agreements and 

understandings.  There are no other agreements or understandings between the parties 

concerning the subject matter hereof.  Each party acknowledges that it has not relied on 

any representations by the other party or by anyone acting or purporting to act for the 
other party or for whose actions the other party is responsible, other than the express, 

written representations set forth herein. 

 

17.                                           Each party shall immediately, within not more than twenty four (24) 
hours, notify the other party of any emergency or condition which may affect its 

participation in or the carrying out of its responsibilities under this Agreement. 
 

18  Employees, servants or agents of either of the parties shall not be deemed 
to be agents, servants or employees of the other party for any purpose.   

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Blank; Signatures Follow] 

 

 
  



  Agenda Item: 7D1 

Dated as of this ____ day of _______________, 2022. 

 

      TOWN OF WELLFLEET, 
      By Its Selectboard 
 
            
      Ryan Curley, Chair 
 
            
      Michael DeVasto, Vice-Chair 
 
            
      Barbara Carboni, Member 
 
            
      Kathleen Bacon, Member 
 
            
      John A. Wolf, Member 
 
 
  



  Agenda Item: 7D1 

Dated as of this ____ day of _______________, 2022. 

 
 
      TOWN OF TRURO, 
      By Its Select Board 
 
            
      Kristen Reed, Chair 
 
            
      Robert Weinstein, Vice-Chair 
 
            
      Susan Areson, Member 
 
            
      Stephanie Rein, Member 
 
            
      John Dundas, Member 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
839197.2/WELL/0185 

 

  



  Agenda Item: 7D1 

 
Exhibit A 

 
Plans 



Agenda Item: 7E

TOWN OF TRURO 
Select Board Agenda Item 

DEPARTMENT: Planning 

REQUESTOR: Barbara Carboni, Town Planner/Land Use Counsel 

REQUESTED MEETING DATE: February 28, 2023 

ITEM: Elimination of practice of board/committee chairs being asked to comment on 

applicants for vacancies, including removal of related question on application 

EXPLANATION: For some time, there has been a practice of board/committee chairs being 

asked to comment on applicants for vacancies on their boards/committees. Reflecting this 

practice, there is a question on the application asking if the applicant has met with the 

board/committee chair. See p. 2 of attachment. 

This practice is not technically unlawful, and it does not automatically create a conflict of 

interest. Nevertheless, it carries the potential for inconsistency in the application process and 

the Select Board's consideration of candidates. During the most recent application process for 

a Planning Board vacancy, Town Counsel advised that the practice is akin to an ex parte 

contact. In addition, the practice places board/committee chairs in a position they may not 

wish to be. The application process offers the Select Board ample opportunity to learn about 

candidates and to make appointments to boards/committees without seeking or receiving a 

chair's opinion on any applicant. 

FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE): N/ A 

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED: The application process for appointment to boards/committees 

will continue to include an unsound practice. 

SUGGESTED ACTION: Eliminate practice of board/committee chairs being asked to comment 

on applicants for vacancies; remove question from application asking if the applicant has met 

1 



with the chair. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1.Printout of online Application to Serve on a Board or Committee 

2 









1 
 

Consent Agenda Item: 8A1 

TOWN OF TRURO 
 

                     Select Board Agenda Item  
 

 
BOARD/COMMITTEE/COMMISSION:  Bike and Walkways Committee 
 
REQUESTOR: Susan Roderick, Chair  
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE: February 28, 2023 
 
ITEM: Request for approval of Letter of Support with Recommendations to MADOT from Bike 
and Walkways Committee and Select Board Members  
 
EXPLANATION: With the Route 6 resurfacing project design phase underway the Bike and 
Walkways Committee wishes to seize the opportunity to address important findings for safe 
community walking and cycling. These would include the following:  

1) An extension of the existing sidewalk along the west side of Route 6 between Truro 
Central School (TCS) and the Public Safety Facility north to the Shore Road 
intersection, and the west side of Route 6 from Truro Central School area to Castle 
Road.  

2) Reapplying bike lane markings and improving the clarity of signage regarding the bike 
lanes prohibited travel, and addressing signage at the end of bike lanes to clarify 
cycling continues after the shoulder lane ends.  

3) Encourage the MADOT to consider broken line pavement applications at curb cuts 
entering Route 6 to remind travelers that they are crossing a bike lane to enter Route 
6.   

4) A request to consider a design of a safe crossing at the junction of Castle Road and 
Route 6.  

5) In working with the Cape Cod Regional Transit Authority (CCRTA), to install weather 
protection for the bus stops, at Castle Road and Truro Central School.  

 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE): N/A 

 



2 
 

 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  Current safety issues not addressed will continue to impact 
pedestrians and cyclists traveling in Truro.   
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO approve electronically signing and sending the Select 
Board-endorsed Bike and Walkways Committee letter to the Massachusetts Department of 
Transportation.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Draft Letter to MassDOT 



TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666 

Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124 Fax: 508-349-5505 
 

                                                        Consent Agenda Item:  8A1 
February 28, 2023 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
We appreciate the work MassDOT has previously completed in response to Truro’s 
requests, in particular the re-design of the Route 6 and Shore Road intersection, and 
the bike lane markings and signage along the Route 6 shoulder. As the design phase of 
the Route 6 resurfacing project proceeds, the Truro Select Board and Bike and 
Walkways Committee would like to offer the following recommendations. 
 
The Town of Truro would like to see an extension of the existing sidewalk along the 
west side of Route 6 between the Truro Central School area and the Public Safety 
Facility north to the Shore Road intersection. Understanding MassDOT’s intentions 
regarding this extension would be beneficial to Truro’s future planning efforts. Similarly, 
the Town also respectfully requests that MassDOT extend the existing sidewalk along 
the west side of Route 6 from the Truro Central School area to the Castle Road 
intersection. 
 
The Town also recommends that bicyclist and pedestrian safety be prioritized by 
retaining and reapplying the bike lane markings and signage along the Route 6 
shoulder. Furthermore, there are six signs that read “Travel prohibited in breakdown 
lane”. Since the breakdown lane has been converted to a bike lane, and signed as 
such, the removal of the “breakdown lane” signs and replacement with “Travel 
prohibited in the bike lane” would improve clarity for all users. 
 
Additional signage recommendations would be to reconsider the use and installation of 
the signs currently placed at the “end” of the bike lanes. The current signs read “Bike 
Lane Ends”. Though the signed “bike lane” does end, the presence of bikes on the road 
shoulder lane does not end. The signage may be misleading to motorists who 
incorrectly assume there will be no bikes beyond those signs. 
 
Another important safety measure that we urge you to consider is adding additional 
broken line markings where a curb cut intersects the bike lane. These curb cuts do not 
have stop signs where a vehicle approaches an entry onto Route 6 and there is no 
reminder that a vehicle entering onto Rt 6 is now turning into or passing over a bike 
lane. A broken line on the road edge, similar to the broken line markings at road 
intersections, would visually warn drivers of the bike lane. 
 
We also encourage MassDOT to consider physical improvements including the design 
of a safe crossing at Castle Road by way of crosswalks and/or other appropriate 
crossing measures and working with CCRTA to accommodate the installation of 
weather protected bus stop shelters that are designed to provide required access,  



TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666 

Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124 Fax: 508-349-5505 
 

 
 
 
 
 
particularly at the stops between Castle Road and Truro Central School. 
 
We greatly appreciate your attention to our recommendations to improve safety and 
accessibility in Truro and would welcome an opportunity to further discuss how these 
recommendations may be included in the Route 6 resurfacing project.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
The Truro Select Board    The Truro Bike & Walkways Committee 
 
 

 



1 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 
 Select Board Agenda Item  

 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Noelle Scoullar, Executive Assistant 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  February 28, 2023 
 
ITEM:  Approval of 2023 Seasonal License Renewals:  Savory & the Sweet Escape (316 Route 6); Top Mast Café 
(209 Shore Road) 
 
EXPLANATION:  Savory and the Sweet Escape and Top Mast Café have submitted their seasonal renewal 
applications for a Common Victualer with supporting documentation.  This is before the Select Board for 
review and approval by the Local Licensing Authority.  There were no reported issues with either 
establishment in 2022. If you approve these for renewal, the licenses will be issued only upon compliance with 
all regulations and upon receipt of the necessary documents and fees. 
 

Mass General Law Licenses & Permits Issued by 
Select Board 

Names of Businesses 

Chapter 140 §2 Common Victualer 
(Cooking, Preparing and Serving food) 

Savory & the Sweet Escape 
& 

Top Mast Café  

 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:   The license will not be issued. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO approve the 2023 Seasonal Common Victualer Licenses for Savory & the 
Sweet Escape and Top Mast Café upon compliance with all regulations and receipt of the necessary 
documents and fees.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Renewal Application for 2023: Savory and the Sweet Escape 
2. Renewal Application for 2023:  Top Mast Café  

 

 

             Consent Agenda Item: 8B 
 
 
 



Consent Agenda Item:  8B1





















































Page 1 of 10 
 

Select Board Meeting Minutes     Consent Agenda Item: 8E1 

January 10, 2023, Regular Meeting 

Via GoToMeeting Platform 

Select Board Members Present: Kristen Reed-Chair, Robert Weinstein-Vice Chair, John Dundas-Clerk, 
Susan Areson-Member, Stephanie Rein-Member 

Select Board Members Absent:  

Others Present: Darrin Tangeman-Town Manager, Kelly Clark-Assistant Town Manager, Town Clerk Kaci 
Fullerton, Kevin Grunwald-Chair Truro Housing Authority, Bob Panessiti-Chair of the Truro Finance 
Committee, Fred Gaechter-Chair of the Walsh Property Community Planning Committee, Cassie Boyd-
Marsh-Bailey Boyd Associates, Marissa Jackson-Eversource Energy, Nola Glatzel-Earthstar Play House. 

 Chair Reed called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. Chair Reed introduced the Members and Town staff 
present. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Chair Reed recognized Jan Worthington, a Truro voter, who requested discussions on the Council on 
Aging (CoA), the status of hiring firefighters/paramedic, and the date for in-person Select Board 
meetings be added to the next meeting’s agenda. Chair Reed thanked Ms. Worthington for her 
comments and noted that these are all important topics. 

Chair Reed recognized Nola Glatzel, a Truro voter and owner of Earthstar Play School, who wished to 
comment on the Truro childcare voucher program. As this was an agenda item for tonight’s meeting, 
Ms. Glatzel confirmed with Chair Reed that she was available to comment later when the topic was 
discussed.  

Chair Reed recognized Town Manager Tangeman who announced that a community meeting will be 
held next Thursday, January 19, 2023, from 3:30 pm – 4:30 pm, at the Community Center, which he will 
attend with Community Services Director Damion Clements to answer questions from Town seniors 
regarding the CoA. Town Manager Tangeman provided a brief update on staff recruitment and a 
transition plan to aid community members receiving Town services. Current staff members are fulfilling 
driver positions to serve the community despite the staffing challenges. Town Manager Tangeman also 
provided an update on the recruitment for 4 firefighters/EMT as well as the regional ambulatory 
transition plan as the Lower Cape Ambulance Association (LCAA) recently notified the Town this week 
that it will cease operations in 6 months (June 30, 2023) instead of 18 months. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. CDBG Public Hearing, Presenter: Cassie Boyd-Marsh-Bailey Boyd Associates 

Chair Reed opened the public hearing and read the public hearing notice. 



Page 2 of 10 
 

Chair Reed recognized Ms. Boyd-Marsh who made a presentation to discuss the upcoming opportunity 
available to Truro for the next round of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding as well as 
provided an update on outcomes and expectations on previously funded programs. Ms. Boyd-Marsh 
highlighted housing rehabilitation and childcare subsidy programs for low-to-moderate income 
residents. Ms. Boyd-Marsh also covered CARES Act funding which are forgivable loans to small 
businesses, the Federal Fiscal 2020 Grant that ended this fall and resulted in the rehabilitation of 24 
homes. This funding addressed critical issues such as weatherization, septic replacement, and 
accessibility. The childcare subsidy program provided funding for 13 children primarily of school age who 
required daycare while their parents worked or sought employment. 

Member Rein asked if Title V septic systems relief will be available this fiscal year to those homeowners 
who need to upgrade to a Title V septic system and Ms. Boyd-Marsh replied in the affirmative. She 
added that septic repairs and replacements made up much of the funding available.  

Chair Reed asked Ms. Boyd-Marsh where residents can go for more information regarding resources 
mentioned in her presentation. Ms. Boyd-Marsh provided the following websites for more information: 
www.theresource.org (for housing rehabilitations) and www.baileyboyd.com (for childcare subsidy 
programs).  

Chair Reed opened the hearing for public comments and there were none. Chair Reed thanked Ms. 
Boyd-Marsh for her presentation. 

Member Dundas made a motion to close the hearing. 
Member Areson seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein - Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye  
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed – Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Member Dundas made a motion to submit an FY’22 and FY’23 CDBG grant for housing rehabilitation 
and childcare subsidies and to authorize the Town Manager, or a designee, to sign the grant 
application and associated forms.  
Member Areson seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein - Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye  
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed – Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Vice Chair Weinstein made a motion to allocate $50,000 from the CDBG Miscellaneous Income to use 
as a contingency for the FY’22 and FY’23 Housing Rehabilitation Program. 
Member Areson seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 

http://www.theresource.org/
http://www.baileyboyd.com/


Page 3 of 10 
 

Vice Chair Weinstein - Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye  
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed – Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Chair Reed thanked Ms. Boyd-Marsh and announced that Ms. Boyd-Marsh had the support from the 
Select Board on these two action items. Ms. Boyd-Marsh thanked the Members and left the meeting. 

Chair Reed asked the Town staff to add resource website links to the Town website, referenced by Ms. 
Boyd-Marsh, so citizens may access those resources. 

B. Eversource Energy Public Hearing for 706 Shore Road, Presenter: Marissa Jackson-Eversource Energy 

Chair Reed opened the public hearing and read the public hearing notice. 

Chair Reed recognized Ms. Jackson who stated that Eversource is proposing the installation of 55’ of 
conduit under the Town road (Shore Road) from an existing pole to a new pole to provide new service to 
706 Shore Road. Ms. Jackson and the Members reviewed visual materials submitted by Eversource. 

There were no comments or questions from the Select Board. 

Chair Reed asked if anyone from the public had any questions or comments and there were none. 

Member Dundas made a motion to close the hearing.  
Member Areson seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Areson – Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Vice Chair Weinstein – Aye  
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed – Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Chair Reed thanked Ms. Jackson for her presentation and Ms. Jackson thanked the Members upon 
leaving the meeting. 
 
Vice Chair Weinstein made a motion to approve the Eversource Energy petition to install 55’ of 
conduit under Shore Road to provide new service to 706 Shore Road. 
Member Rein seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein - Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye  
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed – Aye 



Page 4 of 10 
 

So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 

INTRODUCTION TO NEW EMPLOYEES 

None 

BOARD/COMMITTEE/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS 

A. Interview and Possible Appointment: Carl Fink, Concert Committee 

Chair Reed announced the interview and possible appointment of Mr. Fink to the Concert Committee. 
Chair Reed stated that the Members would ask questions of Mr. Fink from a standard list and then 
welcomed Mr. Fink. 

Chair Reed then asked Mr. Fink to tell the Members about his background which he did. Members then 
asked selected questions.  

Member Dundas made a motion to appoint Mr. Fink to the Concert Committee for a full 3-year term 
expiring on June 30, 2025. 
Vice Chair Weinstein seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein - Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye  
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed – Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Chair Reed congratulated Mr. Fink and Mr. Fink thanked the Members. 

STAFF/COMMITTEE UPDATES 

None 

TABLED ITEMS 

None 

SELECT BOARD ACTION 

A. Presentation on Childcare Voucher Program, Presenter: Cassie Boyd-Marsh, Bailey Boyd Associates 

Chair Reed recognized Ms. Boyd-Marsh whose firm administers the Town’s Childcare Voucher Program. 
Ms. Boyd-Marsh presented a recommendation to improve the program. Ms. Boyd-Marsh noted that the 
program is currently supporting 18 children who attend services provided by 10 license daycare 
providers from Hyannis to Provincetown. Ms. Boyd-Marsh’s recommendation moving forward was to 



Page 5 of 10 
 

loosen the Truro Central School requirement that is part of the current program so more eligible families 
would qualify for daycare services.  

Member Rein asked about the pathway for someone who is a small business owner who files a Schedule 
C and can’t produce a 1099 because they are self-employed. Ms. Boyd-Marsh replied that the minimum 
is 20 hours per week of work to qualify but she will work with Town Manager Tangeman and Assistant 
Town Manager Clark, on a case-by-case basis, to address any gaps for those who can’t produce pay 
stubs to work through the program. Member Rein thanked her for the reply. 

Member Areson had a question regarding the current balance ($23,460) available to pay for the “to be 
billed later” for Phase II and if it was enough to which Ms. Boyd-Marsh replied in the affirmative. 
Member Areson then asked for clarification of a comment made by Ms. Boyd-Marsh to ensure that 
Truro taxpayers would not pay for outside daycare if a family chose not to enroll in the daycare program 
at Truro Central School even though their child could be accommodated to avoid Truro taxpayers paying 
twice. Member Areson stated that the Members should discuss this in more detail regarding exceptions 
at a time deemed appropriate.  

Chair Reed asked if there was anyone from the public who wished to comment or ask questions. Chair 
Reed recognized Ms. Glatzel and thanked her for the letters on this topic which she had sent to the 
Members. 

Ms. Glatzel introduced herself and said that she did send letters. Ms. Glatzel commented that she has 
seen the positive impact of this program as she provides daycare services to 9 families. Ms. Glatzel 
added that without the voucher program, many would be unable to participate in daycare services. Ms. 
Glatzel also commended Bailey Boyd Associates for their administrative for this voucher program and 
the Community Block Grant.  

Ms. Glatzel made the following recommendations and offerings: 

1. earlier application window in the fall so families apply before the school year and grants begin.  
2. updated process for approving children for whose parents work in Truro. 
3. environment for a more transparent appeals process for families not initially approved. 
4. her availability to meet with Members to provide the perspective from an educator/provider on 

the voucher program. 
5. encouraged a Select Board meeting with stakeholders, parents, and providers for more 

discussions. 
6. invited anyone to visit her school to observe how her school operates.  

Ms. Glatzel thanked the Members for their support for the voucher program and the Town in general. 

Chair Reed asked Ms. Boyd-Marsh who stated that she agreed with Ms. Glatzel on her 
recommendations and will work towards those recommendations. Ms. Glatzel thanked Ms. Boyd-Marsh 
for her responses, and she will email Ms. Boyd-Marsh a copy of the letters which she sent to the Select 
Board. 

Vice Chair Weinstein thanked Ms. Boyd-Marsh for her work and Ms. Glatzel for her creativity and hard 
work at her school. 



Page 6 of 10 
 

Chair Reed thanked Ms. Boyd-Marsh for supporting the young families in Truro. 

B. Discussion and Possible Vote on Proposed Increased Town Clerk fees, Presenter: Kaci Fullerton, Town 
Clerk 

Chair Reed recognized Town Clerk Fullerton who introduced her recommendations for her proposed 
Town Clerk fees as they are disproportionate to other Cape Cod communities and make the current fee 
schedule economically unsustainable. Town Clerk Fullerton specifically discussed the increased fees for 
vital records, marriage applications, dog licenses, and business certificates.  

Town Clerk Fullerton presented a chart comparing fees to other Cape Cod towns and her recommended 
increases.  

Vice Chair Weinstein thanked Town Clerk Fullerton and advocated for slightly more aggressive fee 
increases for dog licenses (increased to $15) and business certifications (increase to $30). Town Clerk 
Fullerton thanked Vice Chair Weinstein and agreed with his recommendations. 

Member Areson commented that these increases aren’t about increasing revenue as it is to pay for staff 
time and materials. Member Rein asked if these fees would cover staff time and materials to which 
Town Clerk Fullerton replied in the affirmative. 

Member Rein asked for clarification about “Raffle” fees and Town Clerk Fullerton said that it was for 
anyone or any organization who wanted to operate a raffle at a farmer’s market, for example, and it is 
mandated by state law since it requires coordination with the Massachusetts State Lottery Commission 
and the Massachusetts Gaming Commission.  

Member Dundas thanked Town Clerk Fullerton for her analysis and justifications for the fee increases. 
Member Dundas also supported Vice Chair Weinstein’s recommendations. 

Member Rein stated that she would support the recommended increases. 

Chair Reed asked if there were any public comments and there were none. 

Vice Chair Weinstein made a motion to approve the Town Clerk’s fee schedule as recommended and 
the amended fee schedule for dog licenses for $15 and business certificates for $30. 
Member Dundas seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein - Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye  
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed – Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 

Chair Reed congratulated Town Clerk Fullerton and Town Clerk Fullerton thanked the Members upon 
departing the meeting. 



Page 7 of 10 
 

C. Discussion on Housing Production Plan (HPP), Presenter: Kristen Reed, Select Board Chair 

Chair Reed announced that she will be joined for the presentation by Chair of the Truro Housing 
Authority Kevin Grunwald for this presentation. Chair Reed provided a brief update on next steps with 
the Planning Board. Chair Grunwald then detailed the approval process for the HPP that included the 
Select Board and the Planning Board. The Department of Housing and Community Development then 
certifies the plan. Chair Grunwald commented that he felt that the Town was very close in finalizing the 
HPP.  

Chair Reed, Chair Grunwald, and Members discussed their impression, feedback, and comments about 
the HPP.  

Member Rein stated that she supported the HPP. Member Areson said that she was comfortable with 
the HPP. Member Dundas commented that the HPP supported the Town and noted that the HPP is a 
great framework, but the Members need to consider how to keep and draw businesses into Town. 
Member Dundas concluded that he supported the HPP. Vice Chair Weinstein concurred with his 
colleagues but noted that Truro could not sustain the current business environment due to staffing 
shortages. Vice Chair Weinstein noted that the Town must have a viable economy and sustainable 
business community. Chair Reed commented that the HPP exceeded her expectations, and she 
supported the HPP along with its strategies. Chair Reed thanked Chair Grunwald for his efforts.  

Chair Reed asked for public comments and recognized Chair of the Truro Finance Committee and Chair 
of the Economic Development Committee Bob Panessiti who commented that the Budget Task Force 
process is ongoing and that housing issues are top of mind. Chair Panessiti agreed with the comments 
previously made by Vice Chair Weinstein regarding a viable economy, the need for a middle class, and 
the necessity for families with children to utilize community services and offerings.  

Chair Reed recognized Chair of the Walsh Property Community Planning Committee and Member of the 
Climate Action Committee Fred Gaechter. Chair Gaechter commented that he appreciated the work by 
Chair Grunwald and that the HPP will be of great assistance to the Town. 

Chair Grunwald thanked the Members for all of their efforts and support for the Truro Housing 
Authority. Chair Grunwald agreed with Member Dundas’ comments about the need for the business 
community in Truro and that housing played a critical role in fulfilling those needs. He stated that the Ad 
Hoc Committee, along with Member Areson and the Planning Board have had discussions regarding the 
HPP and the need for a housing coordinator. Chair Grunwald noted that the Truro Housing Authority is 
not yet quite ready to submit a proposed Warrant article.  Chair Grunwald also briefly mentioned a 
potential Habitat for Humanity project for three homes at 181 Route 6, property owned by the Town, 
that he noted was controversial and geographically challenging. An alternate plan has been developed. 
Chair Grunwald concluded that he sought approval from the Select Board on the HPP. 

When asked by Chair Reed, Chair Grunwald stated that there was no set deadline for the submission of 
the HPP to the state, but he added that he would like to submit it as soon as possible. Chair Reed asked 
Town staff if the Planning Board or Conservation Commission has discussed the HPP, or voted on it, and 
Town Manager Tangeman replied that he has not seen it discussed as an agenda item for either entity. 
Assistant Town Manager Clark confirmed that information.  



Page 8 of 10 
 

Chair Reed asked Member Dundas, as Select Board liaison to the Planning Board, to advise the Planning 
Board with this update and added that the goal is to obtain Planning Board approval of the HPP prior to 
Town meeting. Member Dundas replied in the affirmative. 

Chair Grunwald thanked the Members and credited Jenn Goldson, a consultant on the HPP, for her hard 
work and her wonderful 1-hour presentation that was recently conducted.  

Chair Reed also credited Ms. Goldson for her hard work and that she served as an asset to the Town. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda, Chair Reed recused herself from the ABCC Alcohol License 
Report as her company is an ABCC Alcohol License holder.  

A. Review/Approve and Authorize Signature: None 
B. Review and Approve Appointment Renewals: None 
C. Review and Approve 2022 Annual ABCC Alcohol License Report 
D. Review and Approve 2023 Business Licenses: North Highland Camping Area LLC; Box Lunch Truro 
E. Review and Approve Select Board Minutes: 12.13.2022 (Budget Task Force) 
 
Member Areson made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda with the recusal. 
Member Dundas seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein - Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye  
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed – Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 

SELECT BOARD REPORTS/COMMENTS 

Member Rein reported that she recently attended a meeting at the Truro Public Library. The library is 
currently preparing its 5-Year Strategic Plan and has an online survey regarding this on the website to 
obtain citizens’ input. The Walsh Property Community Planning Committee meeting is on January 18, 
2023, and all are encouraged to attend. 

Member Areson encouraged attendance of the Walsh Property Community Planning Committee 
meeting as the committee is working with the consultant on Goals and Objectives as well as the Vision 
Statement. The Local Comprehensive Plan Committee representatives will appear at the Walsh meeting 
to answer questions as well. The Open Space Committee has been meeting regularly as they are 
updating the Open Space and Recreation Plan that is now a 160-page document. The state has 
requirements which must be addressed in the document and that is the reason for its length. A final 
draft should be coming to the boards in the next couple of weeks. The Harbor Commission met two 
weeks ago and there is great concern about the breach at Corn Hill Beach and the North Jetty. Member 
Areson said that she has been attending Budget Task Force meetings. She encouraged citizens to attend 
Budget Task Force meeting if at all possible and to reach out to Town staff with any questions. Member 



Page 9 of 10 
 

Areson concluded by thanking Town Manager Tangeman and Community Services Director Damion 
Clements for meeting with the community to answer questions about the Council on Aging. It was very 
much appreciated, and it was important for the elderly citizens to meet with Town leadership. 

Member Dundas commented that he agreed with Member Areson’s comments about participating in 
the Budget Task Force process. Member Dundas also expressed gratitude for the Members’ 
appointment of Mr. Fink to the Concert Committee. Member Dundas recently met with the Concert 
Committee and noted that the programming that the Concert Committee schedules helped as a 
community recruitment tool. The Water and Sewer Board has two meetings scheduled for February and 
he will provide more information as it becomes available. The Cable and Internet Committee still has an 
online survey open to the public for input so please participate.  

Vice Chair Weinstein wished everyone a Happy New Year. He apologized for his attendance recently, but 
he had major surgery just before Christmas and will likely have a reduced schedule through February. He 
expressed gratitude and thanks to the members of the community who have reached out to him with 
well wishes and offers of assistance. 

Chair Reed announced the next Budget Task Force meeting is Tuesday, January 17, 2023, at 8:30 am. 
Assistant Town Manager Clark stated that the budgets to be briefed and discussed are Building, Finance, 
IT, and Town Clerk. 

TOWN MANAGER REPORT 

Town Manager Tangeman reviewed the agenda for the next Select Board meeting.  

Upon completion of Town Manager Tangeman’s report, Member Areson noted that she would like to 
add the topic of Open Space Plan to the agenda for a meeting in early February, but she will coordinate 
with Town Planner/Land Use Counsel Carboni. 

Member Dundas made a motion to adjourn at 6:41 pm. 
Member Areson seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein - Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye  
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed – Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Alexander O. Powers 
Board/Committee/Commission Support Staff 
 
 



Page 10 of 10 
 

____________________________  
Darrin K. Tangeman Under the Authority of the Truro Select Board 
 

Public Records Material Attachments  

Legal Notice 
Memorandum from Alice Boyd and Cassie Boyd Marsh, Bailey Boyd Associates, Inc. 
Cape Cod Time Public Hearing Proof 
Eversource Energy Memorandum, Petition, Form of Order, Plan, Abutter Notification List 
Public Hearing Legal Ad 
Application to Serve and Chair’s Comments (Carl Fink) 
Childcare Voucher Program Report 
Recommended Fee Schedule Adjustment for the Town Clerk’s Fees 
Linked: Housing Production Plan and Executive Summary 
2022 Annual ABCC Reports from Truro 
ABCC Annual Report Memorandum 
Renewal Application for 2023: North Highland Camping Area 
Renewal Application for 2023: Box Lunch Truro 
 
 



Page 1 of 5 
 

Select Board Meeting Minutes     Consent Agenda Item:  8E2 

January 10, 2023, Budget Task Force Meeting 

Via GoToMeeting Platform 

Select Board Members Present: Kristen Reed-Chair, John Dundas-Clerk, Sue Areson-Member, Stephanie 
Rein-Member 

Select Board Members Absent: Robert Weinstein-Vice Chair 

Others Present: Darrin Tangeman-Town Manager, Kelly Clark-Assistant Town Manager, Alex Lessin-
Finance Director, Trudi Brazil-Town Accountant, Emily Beebe-Health & Conservation Agent, Damion 
Clements-Director of Community Services Stephanie Costigan-Truro School Superintendent, Robert 
Panessiti-Finance Committee (FinCom) Chair, Rich Wood-Finance Committee (FinCom) Vice Chair, Lori 
Meads-Finance Committee (FinCom) Clerk 

Chair Reed called the meeting to order at 8:30 am and introduced Members and Town staff present.  

FinCom Chair Panessiti introduced himself, FinCom Vice Chair Wood, and FinCom Clerk Meads. FinCom 
Chair Panessiti also called to order the FinCom meeting. 

Chair Reed led the discussion and review FY2024 Budget for the following departments: Health & 
Conservation, Community Services, Recreation and Beach, and Council on Aging 

Health & Conservation 

Chair Reed recognized Health & Conservation Agent Beebe who presented a narrative summary for the 
Health & Conservation 2024 fiscal year budget.  

Health & Conservation Agent highlighted the following topics: environmental projects, water supply, 
wastewater, human services, public outreach with adjacent four communities, vendor contracts 
(including Outer Cape Health Services and water supply consultant), increase in salary and wages for 
both Assistant Agents including a Ph.D. in Chemistry who was hired at a higher salary than originally 
anticipated), increase in the Community Navigator program, increase for the teens’ program, 
alignment with the Select Board’s Goals and Objectives, department sustainability challenges and 
grant reimbursements, recommended efficiencies, COVID/epidemic impacts, digitalization and 
technology, and revenues.  

Select Board comments or questions covering the following topics: environmental, water, and wage 
challenges and the Community Navigator program.  

FinCom comments and questions included the following topics: next steps for the 22 property owners 
who have noncompliant septic systems and regarding sufficient resource support. 

There were no public comments. 



Page 2 of 5 
 

 

Chair Reed thanked Health & Conservation Agent Beebe for her presentation and efforts. 

Community Services 

Chair Reed recognized Community Services Director Clements who presented a narrative summary for 
the Community Services 2024 fiscal year budget.  

Community Services Director Clements highlighted the following topics: overview of the Recreation and 
Beach Department, staffing (year-round and seasonal), partnerships with other committees and 
commissions, salaries and wages (increases for seasonal beach lifeguard program and increase to rates 
per classification and compensation study) , services (rentable portable tents, increase in service 
contracts, decrease in satellite phone service as it was placed in the Fire Department budget), supplies 
(increase in athletic supplies, increase in seasonal supplies, anticipated increase in gas/diesel prices, 
decrease in Personal Protection Equipment),  and other unclassified charges (increase in instate travel, 
increase in dues and membership due to an increase of in-person events). 

Member Areson noted that she learned at a meeting yesterday and became aware that the after-school 
program for young families had been cut out of the school budget. Member Areson suggested that this 
issue should be addressed and rectified to help young families. FinCom Clerk Meads commented that 
this issue has been a challenge for her employees who reside in Truro, and as a result, they have 
enrolled their children in Provincetown schools as an after-school program is provided. Chair Reed said 
that she was aware of a petition being circulated in Town requesting $300,000 from free cash to be used 
for the after-school program for young families. Town Manager Tangeman commented that this should 
be a discussion during the Warrant season, so it is permanent for the community. Superintendent 
Costigan noted that her budget is 6% higher so the School Committee asked her to identify places where 
savings could occur. Superintendent Costigan recommended to the School Committee that next year 
school activities are offered until 4 pm year-round and she looked forward to the conversation with 
Town Manager Tangeman and Community Services Director Clements. Superintendent Costigan and 
Community Services Director Clements agreed that there is a need for this program. Community 
Services Director Clements said that the staffing for the program would be a challenge as the availability 
of staff is an obstacle. FinCom Vice Chair Wood said that there must be a balance between salaries for 
staff for an after-school program, as well as for other activities for adults, and the community services 
offered which citizens expect.  

FinCom Members’ comments were the proposed budget reflected the increase in the delivery of 
services, the increased costs of goods, and programs support the youth and adults through various 
programs. 

Town Manager Tangeman commented that there was a lot of staff turnover in Community Services and 
there was reorganization. The increase in wages reflects the new wage scale in coordination with the 
union. He added that the intent next year is to have the Community Services Department transition into 
one combined budget so it would be easier to do an “apple to apple” assessment over the previous 
year.  There have been discussions about possibly reducing the staff for the Council on Aging but 
reallocating those responsibilities to existing staff members working within the Community Services 
Department. There is a current need for additional drivers. 



Page 3 of 5 
 

Recreation and Beach 

Community Services Director Clements reviewed the main objectives of the Select Board Goals and 
Objectives including: the efficacy of the childcare voucher program, stewardship of the beaches, 
collaboration with the Council on Aging to expand services and programs for all ages, the digitization of 
Town services and records, requested staffing changes (Town Manager’s reorganization is budget 
neutral), sustainability (environmental stewards of beaches and improve beach parking lots), 
recommended efficiencies (implementing more collaborative programs and events such as Polar Express 
and Halloween Party), COVID/epidemic impacts (program participation has not returned to pre-
pandemic numbers), digitization and technology (need for HR software for onboarding and offboarding 
seasonal employees), revenues (reviewing summer recreation youth program, beach operation fees), 
and capital planning (Head of the Meadow, FY’24, and Corn Hill, FY’25, for beach parking lot pavement 
preservation and striping construction).  

There were no Select Board comments or questions. 

FinCom Clerk Meads asked when the beach fees were last adjusted, and Community Service Director 
Clements replied that the fees were adjusted in 2022 and were aligned with other Cape Cod 
communities. FinCom Vice Chair Wood commented that when examining seasonal passes fee 
adjustments those changes should be made in the best interest of Truro and no other Cape towns. 
FinCom Vice Chair Wood suggested that vacationers in Truro are likely willing to pay higher seasonal 
passes rather than traveling to beaches in other towns. FinCom Chair Panessiti voiced his support for all 
departments reviewing their respective fees associated with deliverable programs and services to 
remain competitive with other Cape towns as the cost of goods and salaries increase.   

Council on Aging 

Community Services Director Clements presented a narrative summary for the Council of Aging 2024 
fiscal year budget. Community Services Director covered the following topics: overview (mission 
statement), anticipated cost increases or decreases (decrease in hourly wages due to reorganization, 
increase in printing due to newsletter, addition of telephone for security and safety, addition of health 
supplies to add a wheelchair for the Community Center, addition to replace office furniture at the CoA), 
other unclassified charges (addition workshop/conference for staff to attend MCOA Annual 
Conference).    

There were no Select Board comments or questions. 

FinCom Director Panessiti stated that he was not surprised that there were certain increases in the 
budget as services are returning post-COVID and meeting the needs of the community. He added that 
efficiencies need to be managed in delivering these services.  

Community Services Director Clements reviewed the main objectives of the Select Board Goals and 
Objectives , including the Senior Needs Assessment and increasing the digitization of Town services and 
records and requested staffing changes (full-time, part-time, and on-call). 

There were no Select Board comments or questions.  



Page 4 of 5 
 

There were no FinCom comments or questions.  

Chair Reed invited Town Manager Tangeman to comment on recent recruitment. Town Manager 
Tangeman commented that an offer had been extended to fill the vacancy of Deputy Director with a 
start date of January 23, 2023. The outreach coordinator position has been posted and he expected an 
offer within the next week. Finally, the administrative assistant role has yielded some very good 
candidates and he anticipated some interviews this week. Town Manager Tangeman was hopeful of 
having all three positions filled by the end of the month. Town Manager Tangeman credited Community 
Services Director Clements for his hard work.  

Community Services Director Clements then continued with his main objectives of the Select Board 
Goals and Objectives including sustainability (none), recommended efficiencies (allow for skill/talent 
sharing of staff members), COVID/epidemic impacts (program participation and department 
involvement have not returned to pre-pandemic numbers and a need for subscriptions to continue to 
offer hybrid activities and programs), digitization and technology (continue to utilize the software 
product, “My Senior Center”, for programming and communicating to participants), revenues (many 
programs offered at no cost and the largest fee-based program is the Community Lunch program), 
capital planning (no requests for FY2024), and other (none). 

Chair Reed noted that she was appreciative that hybrid options were available. 

FinCom Chair Panessiti commented that FinCom Clerk Meads had left the meeting so there was no 
longer a quorum for the FinCom. 

Community Services Director Clements then presented the line-item budget and was available for 
questions. Member Areson mentioned that the budgets were available on the Town website under 
Budget Task Force. 

Chair Reed asked if anyone from the public had any questions and there were none. 

Chair Reed invited Community Services Director Clements for any final comments. Community Services 
Director Clements that they are exploring solutions, such as RV trailers, to satisfy seasonal housing 
challenges. Town Manager Tangeman said he is exploring creative solutions by looking at other tourism-
based economies with seasonal housing for employees. He added that he anticipated appearing in front 
of the Select Board and the Affordable Housing Trust to seek funds to help with seasonal housing now 
and the next couple of years.  

FinCom Chair Panessiti thanked Community Services Director Clements for his work and presentation. 
FinCom Vice Chair Wood commented that the Cape Cod Baseball League has a housing program with 
local residents for college athletes who are on the Cape for the summer. FinCom Vice Chair Wood 
suggested approaching residents who may have rooms available to house seasonal employees who 
work for the Town for either compensation or for free. 

There were no additional questions and Chair Reed thanked Community Services Director Clements for 
his hard work.  



Page 5 of 5 
 

Asking for a motion to adjourn the meeting, at 10:22 am, Chair Reed was informed by Member Areson 
that there was no longer a Select Board quorum as Members Dundas and Rein had left the meeting.  

Chair Reed announced that there would be another Budget Task Force meeting on Tuesday, January 18, 
2023, at 8:30 am, to discuss the budgets for Finance, Building and Inspections, Town Clerk, and 
Information Technology.  

Chair Reed thanked the participants and adjourned the meeting.  

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Alexander O. Powers 
Board/Committee/Commission Support Staff 
 
____________________________  
Darrin K. Tangeman Under the Authority of the Truro Select Board 
 
Public Records Material Attachments  

Legal Notice 



Page 1 of 9 
 

Select Board Meeting Minutes     Consent Agenda Item:  8E3 

December 13, 2022, Meeting 

Via GoToMeeting Platform 

Select Board Members Present: Kristen Reed-Chair, Robert Weinstein-Vice Chair, John Dundas-Clerk, 
Susan Areson-Member, Stephanie Rein-Member 

Select Board Members Absent:  

Others Present: Darrin Tangeman-Town Manager, Kelly Clark-Assistant Town Manager, Stephanie 
Costigan-Superintendent & Director of Student Services, Jarrod Cabral-DPW Director, Damion Clements-
Director of Community Services, Austin Smith-Deputy Director of Recreation and Beach Department, 
Tony Jackett-Harbormaster, Jon Nahas-Principal Assessor, Emily Beebe-Health & Conservation Agent, 
Dan Smith-Member of the Shellfish Advisory Committee, Carol Harris-Chair of the Climate Action 
Committee, Mitchell Buck (P.E.)-Woods Hole Group, Nils Wiberg (P.E.)-Fuss & O’Neill, Cristina Kennedy-
Massachusetts Division of Ecological Restoration, Timothy Richards-Resident and Abutter to Mill Pond 
Road Culvert, Michael Miller-Resident and Abutter to Mill Pond Road Culvert  

Chair Reed called the meeting to order at 5:01 pm. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Chair Reed recognized Joan Holt, a Truro resident, who commented on the loss of services for senior 
residents, the reduction of staff, programs, and service hours at the Council of Aging.  

PUBLIC HEARING 

A. New Application for Aquaculture Development Area Grant-Douglas Grey, 6 Blackfish Rd-Presenters: 
Douglas Grey, Dan Smith (Shellfish Advisory Committee), Tony Jackett, Harbormaster 

Chair Reed read Mr. Grey’s application and endorsement of support from Harbormaster Jackett. Chair 
Reed recognized Mr. Grey who provided information as to why he would like to receive approval for his 
application. 

Harbormaster Jackett noted that he had assisted Mr. Grey with his application and supported the 
application. Additionally, Mr. Smith noted that although Mr. Grey does not have a lot of experience in 
aquaculture, the Shellfish Advisory Committee supported Mr. Grey’s application. 

Members discussed the following topics with Mr. Grey: scalability of the operation by utilizing best 
practices to gain profitability as soon as possible, the use of flow and grow cages so the oysters may 
accumulate growth on the oyster shell, delineation of the grant area boundaries so recreational boaters 
in the Pamet Harbor are aware of the operation with the use of buoys and the possibility to add signage 
so the public is aware of the grant area. 

Chair Reed invited the members of the public to comment and there were none. 



Page 2 of 9 
 

Chair Reed invited Town staff to comment and there were none. 

Vice Chair Weinstein made a motion to adjourn the hearing. 
Member Areson seconded the motion.    
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein - Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed - Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Vice Chair Weinstein made a motion to issue an aquaculture development area license to Douglas 
Grey of 6 Blackfish Road for grants #6-10 in the grant development area for a term of 2 years expiring 
December 31, 2024. 
Member Areson seconded the motion.    
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein - Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed - Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Chair Reed announced the approval of the license to Mr. Grey and Mr. Grey thanked the Members. 
    
INTRODUCTION TO NEW EMPLOYEES 
 
A. Austin Smith-Deputy Director of Community Services: Recreation & Beach Department 
 
Chair Reed recognized Director of Community Services Clements who introduced and welcomed Deputy 
Director Smith. Deputy Director Smith provided his professional background and his focus to make 
positive changes within the department. 
 
Chair Reed and the Members welcomed Deputy Director Smith. 
 
BOARD/COMMITTEE/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS 
 
A. Interview and Possible Appointment of Recreation Advisory Committee Full Member: Christine 
McGee 
 
Chair Reed, along with the Members, conducted the interview of Ms. McGee using a standardized list of 
questions. 
 
Member Dundas made a motion to appoint Christine McGee as an alternative member to the 
Recreation Advisory Committee for a 1-year term that will expire on June 30th, 2023. 
Member Areson seconded the motion.    
Roll Call Vote: 



Page 3 of 9 
 

Vice Chair Weinstein - Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed - Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Chair Reed congratulated Ms. McGee who thanked the Members. 
 
B. Interview and Possible Appointment of Board of Assessors Full Member: Annie Ditacchio 
 
Chair Reed, along with the Members, conducted the interview of Ms. Ditacchio using a standardized list 
of questions. 
 
Member Rein made a motion to appoint Annie Ditacchio as a full member to the Board of Assessors 
for a 3-year term that will expire on June 30th, 2024. 
Member Dundas seconded the motion.    
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein - Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed - Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Chair Reed congratulated Ms. Ditacchio who thanked the Members. 
 
C. Interview and Possible Appointment of Zoning Board of Appeals Full Member and Potential Alternate 
Member: Curtis Hartman, Joseph McKinnon, Nancy Medoff 
 
Chair Reed, along with the Members, conducted the interviews (in alphabetical order) of Mr. Hartman, 
Mr. McKinnon, and Nancy Medoff using a standardized list of questions. 
 
Upon completion of the interviews, the Members discussed the candidates and their preferences for the 
Full Member and the Alternate Member. Members Areson, Dundas, and Rein named Ms. Medoff as 
their preferred Full Member and Mr. Hartman and Mr. McKinnon as the Alternate Members. Chair Reed 
and Vice Chair Weinstein concurred with the preferences stated by their colleagues. 
 
Member Areson made a motion to appoint Nancy Medoff as a Full Member of the Zoning Board of 
Appeals to the unexpired term of three years ending on June 30, 2023. 
Vice Chair Weinstein seconded the motion.    
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein - Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed - Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 



Page 4 of 9 
 

Chair Reed congratulated Ms. Medoff on her appointment as a Full Member of the ZBA. 
 
Member Areson made a motion to appoint Joseph McKinnon to an unexpired Alternate term on the 
Zoning Board of Appeals. The term expires on June 30th, 2023. 
Vice Chair Weinstein seconded the motion.    
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein - Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed - Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Chair Reed congratulated Mr. McKinnon on his appointment as an Alternate Member of the ZBA. 
 
STAFF/COMMITTEE UPDATES 
 
A. Cape Cod 5 Educational Mini-Grant Announcement for Truro Central School Recipients-Presenters: 
Stephanie Costigan, Superintendent/Director of Student Services and John Dundas, Select Board Clerk 
and Liaison to School Committee 
 
Chair Reed recognized Superintendent Costigan who provided background on the Cape Cod 5 Mini-
Grant. Chair Reed recognized Truro Central School teachers who were previous recipients of mini-grants 
and mentioned how the grants were used. Superintendent Costigan also noted how proud she was that 
so many teachers applied for the mini grants. 
 
Chair Reed recognized Member Dundas who said that he appreciated the efforts of Superintendent 
Costigan, the teachers, and staff at Truro Central School who were making a positive impact on the 
children of Truro. 
 
TABLED ITEMS 

A. Continued Discussion and Potential Adoption of Community Service Award Program-Presenter: John 
Dundas, Select Board Clerk 

Chair Reed recognized Member Dundas who provided an introduction and overview of his interactive 
PDF document that detailed the award program in honor of the late Fred Todd. Member Dundas 
thanked the Members for their comments and suggested edits which had been provided to him prior to 
tonight’s meeting.  

A discussion then ensued among Members with an exchange of several ideas regarding the award 
nominee process, the inclusion of former board or committee members for consideration, the naming of 
the award (upon approval from the Select Board) as the “Fred Todd Community Service Award”, and a 
letter for volunteers who are not selected for the award to acknowledge their contributions to the 
community. 

This item will be further discussed at the January 10th, 2023, meeting and added to that meeting’s 
agenda. 



Page 5 of 9 
 

SELECT BOARD ACTION 
 
A. Review and Approve the Dedication and Theme of the 2022 Annual Town Report-Presenter: Darrin 
Tangeman, Town Manager  

Chair Reed recognized Town Manager Tangeman who said that this meeting item would only be a 
discussion item. Chair Reed asked Members for their ideas and suggestions. Hearing none, Chair Reed 
stated the members of the community would be given the opportunity to express their thoughts on the 
dedication and theme followed by a vote by the Select Board at an upcoming meeting.  

B. Discussion and Possible Approval of Letter to Planning Board Related to Select Board FY’23 Objective 
#11-Presenters: John Dundas, Select Board Clerk, and Susan Areson, Select Board Members 
 
Chair Reed recognized Member Dundas who provided the genesis for the Select Board letter to the 
Planning Board related to the Select Board FY’23 Objective. Member Dundas acknowledged the efforts 
of Planning Board Chair Anne Greenbaum, Planning Board Vice Chair Rich Roberts, and Member Areson. 
 
Chair Reed recognized Member Areson who stated her appreciation for Member Dundas’ efforts and 
that she supported the letter’s approval. 
 
Chair Reed stated that the letter was incomplete to her and didn’t reference the playbook or the 
Housing Production Plan.  
 
A discussion among the Members ensued and many opined that the letter was incomplete and 
discussed the Planning Board’s expectation to have received the letter much sooner. Member Dundas 
suggested changing the date of the letter being sent to the Planning Board to July 30th, 2023, as it would 
give a more accurate “azimuth check” prior to the end of the fiscal year. Members concurred with 
Member Dundas.  
 
After hearing the comments from the other Members, Chair Reed announced that there would be no 
vote this evening on the letter prepared by Member Dundas. Chair Reed said that this would be further 
discussed at a Select Board meeting in June 2023 with a target date of July 2023 for the approved letter 
to be sent to the Planning Board.  
 
C. Discussion and Possible Vote for Mill Pond Road Culvert Replacement State Grant Contract-Presenter: 
Jarrod Cabral, DPW Director 
 
Chair Reed recognized DPW Director Cabral who provided background on this project. Following his 
presentation, Members discussed this topic and agreed that the Mill Pond culvert replacement 
alternatives (item D) should not be decided until after a public hearing where public comments are 
received on this topic. 

Member Areson made a motion to approve moving forward with the design and permitting for any 
one of the four alternatives suggested for Mill Pond and Mill Pond Road and authorize the Town 
Manager to sign the state contract. 
Member Rein seconded the motion.    
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein – Aye 



Page 6 of 9 
 

Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed - Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
D. Discussion and Possible Vote on Mill Pond Road Culvert Replacement Alternatives-Presenter: Jarrod 
Cabral, DPW Director 
 
Chair Reed announced that as discussed previously the Members would not vote on this item until after 
a Select Board meeting or public hearing was held to receive the public’s input on this matter.  
 
Chair Reed invited members of the public to offer comments prior to DPW Director Cabral’s review of 
the four alternatives for Mill Pond Road. Climate Action Committee Chair Carol Harris and Health & 
Conservation Agent Emily Beebe made brief comments. 
 
Chair Reed recognized DPW Director Cabral who reviewed the four alternatives for Mill Pond Road and 
provided background information regarding this matter. DPW Director Cabral briefly addressed the 
environmental impacts and benefits of the culvert replacement and breach alternatives.  
 
DPW Director Cabral also briefly covered the following topics: roadway closure and roadway 
abandonment, legal review with Town Planner/Land Use Counsel Barbara Carboni, traffic counts and 
traffic studies, police department and fire department’s input on the breaches, notification to abutters 
regarding the project, scope of work, road raising and the historic interest to the Town.   
 
DPW Director Cabral asked Mr. Buck to provide an overview and summary of the design alternatives 
created by the Woods Hole Group and in collaboration with Fuss & O’Neill. After Mr. Buck’s 
presentation, Chair Reed recognized Mr. Richards who stated that he supported a public hearing for the 
public to comment on the project. 
 
Chair Reed recognized Mr. Wiberg who said that Mr. Mitchell had covered everything very well and 
noted that capital costs and end costs are a concern. Mr. Wiberg added that consideration was given to 
recreational users such as paddlers who would want to have access to an open channel.  
 
Chair Reed recognized Mr. Miller who commented that the Select Board may want to consider a 
pedestrian/bike path above the breach as the area is popular with pedestrians and bicyclists.  
 
Chair Reed thanked the presenters for their work and the members of the public for their comments. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Prior to the Consent Agenda, Chair Reed recognized Member Areson who had a couple of corrections 
for the Minutes on 11/9/2022 (remove stray letter under paragraph F, add “she knew that”, add 
Member Areson’s memorandum to the minutes, change “handbook” to “playbook”). 
 
A. Review/Approve and Authorize Signature: None 
Review and Approve Appointment Renewals: None 



Page 7 of 9 
 

C. Review and Approve 2023 Annual Business Licenses-North Truro Camping Area and Adventure Bound 
Camping Resort at Horton’s (Transient Vendor); Truro Vineyards (Lodging) 
D. Review and Approve Select Board/Planning Board Joint Minutes of 10/25/2022; Select Board Regular 
Meeting Minutes of 10/25/2022; Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes of 11/9/2022 
  
Member Areson made a motion to accept the Consent Agenda with the amended edits for the 
meeting minutes for 11/9/2022. 
Member Rein seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein – Not present due to technical issue 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed - Aye 
So voted, 4-0-0, motion carries. 

SELECT BOARD REPORTS/COMMENTS  

Vice Chair Weinstein said that he attended the most recent Energy Committee meeting yesterday. The 
Energy Committee is exploring an RFP for a private developer to install a solar array at the Truro 
Transfer Station. It is enough area where it could produce 1 megawatt of power. There are federal tax 
credits available, and the IRS looks very favorably upon communities which develop brown field areas 
for solar arrays. The Energy Committee also discussed in detail the possibility of utilizing roof areas of 
Town-owned buildings and confirming those roof areas with satellite imagery. These efforts could result 
in significant revenues for Truro.   

Member Dundas said he wished everyone Happy Holidays and thanked Town staff for their efforts 
during the budgeting process. 

Member Areson said she wanted to apologize to Ms. Holt and that she was sorry that Ms. Holt was 
muted at the last meeting. Member Areson added that she would like Town Manager Tangeman to 
provide a report on the Council of Aging and the hiring process. The Local Comprehensive Plan 
Committee (LCPC) has started an outreach campaign on a draft Vision Statement so the LCPC would like 
to appear at a Select Board meeting in January 2023 to present it. The ad hoc Housing Committee has 
met several times to discuss ideas and collaborations around housing. Member Areson will return to the 
Select Board in mid-January 2023 to report on the items discussed. Member Areson congratulated the 
Walsh Property Community Planning Committee (WPCPC) on a great event last week. Member Areson 
wished everyone a Happy Holiday season. 

Member Rein thanked Superintendent Stephanie Costigan, Principal Patrick Riley, and the custodial staff 
at Truro Central School for allowing the Walsh Property Community Planning Committee (WPCPC) to 
hold its event last week at the school. Member Rein also noted the great work and effort done by the 
WPCPC in hosting the public outreach event. It was an informative event and allowed the public to ask 
questions and provide input. Member Rein thanked everyone who participated in the event as well. 
Member Rein wished everyone a Happy Holiday season and a joyous New Year.   
 
Chair Reed reported that she had attended on December 8th, 2022, a roundtable discussion with the 
Baker-Polito Administration where it was announced that Truro and the Cloverleaf will receive federal 



Page 8 of 9 
 

and state low-income housing tax credits and subsidiary funds. The Town staff is working on a press 
release to obtain exact numbers so that information can be shared with the community.  
 
TOWN MANAGER REPORT 

Chair Reed acknowledged Ms. Holt’s comments regarding the Council on Aging (CoA) at the last Select 
Board meeting as well as this evening’s meeting. Chair Reed noted that Town Manager Tangeman had 
addressed those concerns at the previous Select Board meeting, but Ms. Holt may not have been 
present during that portion of the meeting.  
 
Chair Reed then invited Town Manager Tangeman to provide an update on the recruitment of staff for 
the CoA prior to his Town Manager Report.      

Town Manager Tangeman provided a quick update for the recruitment of a deputy director for the CoA 
and has extended the recruitment. There will be two interviews this Thursday for highly qualified 
candidates for this role. Additionally, the interview process continues for an administrative assistant that 
supports the Recreation Department and CoA. The CoA’s Community Outreach Report has arrived, and 
it will be provided to the new deputy director once hired. The job market has been challenging yet the 
Town is doing its best to expand its marketing opportunities to attract highly qualified candidates for the 
current Town vacancies. 

NEXT MEETING AGENDA 

Town Manager Tangeman provided an overview of the agenda for the next regular meeting on Tuesday, 
January 10th, 2023. 

Chair Reed thanked the Members and wished everyone a Happy Holiday season. 

Member Dundas made a motion to adjourn at 8:27 pm. 
Vice Chair Weinstein seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein - Aye 
Member Dundas - Aye 
Member Areson - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed - Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Alexander O. Powers 
Board/Committee/Commission Support Staff 
 
 
____________________________  
Darrin K. Tangeman Under the Authority of the Truro Select Board 
 



Page 9 of 9 
 

Public Records Material Attachments  

Legal Notice 
Public Hearing Notice 
Douglas Grey Aquaculture Application 
Shellfish Advisory Committee October 27, 2022, Minutes 
Aquaculture Development Area Regulations (see Section 10) 
Application to Serve (Christine McGee); Chair’s comments 
Application to Serve (Annie Dittachio); Chair's comments 
Application to Serve (Curtis Hartman) 
Application to Serve (Joseph McKinnon) 
Application to Serve (Nancy Medoff) 
Updated Draft of Community Service Evaluation Form 
List of 2022 Deaths and Retirements – to be provided 
Draft Planning Board Letter 
Standard Massachusetts State Contract with Scope of Services 
Conceptual Design Report from Woods Hole Group 
Alternatives Assessment Technical Memorandum from Fuss & O’Neill 
Renewal Application for 2023: North Truro Camping Area 
Renewal Application for 2023: Adventure Bound Camping Resort at Horton’s 
Renewal Application for 2023: Truro Vineyards 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 6 
 

Select Board Meeting Minutes     Consent Agenda Item:  8E4 

November 15, 2022, Meeting 

Via GoToMeeting Platform 

Select Board Members Present: Kristen Reed-Chair, Robert Weinstein-Vice Chair, John Dundas-Clerk, 
Susan Areson-Member, Stephanie Rein-Member 

Select Board Members Absent:  

Others Present: Darrin Tangeman-Town Manager, Kelly Clark-Assistant Town Manager, Jarrod Cabral-
DPW Director, Tony Jackett-Harbormaster, Betty Gallo-Member of the Truro Housing Authority 

Chair Reed called the meeting to order at 5:01 pm. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

There were no public comments.  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

None 

INTRODUCTION TO NEW EMPLOYEES 
 
None   
 
BOARD/COMMITTEE/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS 
 
None 
 
STAFF/COMMITTEE UPDATES 
 
None 
 
TABLED ITEMS 

None 

SELECT BOARD ACTION 
A. Presentation on Results of Port to Port: Profiles and Analysis of the Massachusetts Commercial 
Fishery-Presenter: Doreen Leggett, Community Journalist and Communications Officer of the Cape Cod 
Commercial Fishermen’s Alliance (CCCFA)  
 
Chair Reed introduced Ms. Leggett who briefly provided historical background on the creation of the 
CCCFA and the establishment of commercial fishery profiles and analysis of commercial fishing ports in 



Page 2 of 6 
 

Massachusetts. Ms. Leggett appeared at this evening’s meeting to raise awareness of Truro’s 
commercial fishery profile released by a 2021 Massachusetts report that was prepared with input from 
the harbormaster. Ms. Leggett reviewed Truro’s port profile data with the Members and highlighted the 
issues of dredging, limited parking, the need for increased recreational dock space, available grants, and 
regional collaborations which are important to the success of Truro’s commercial fishing industry. 
 
Chair Reed thanked Ms. Leggett for her presentation and then recognized Harbormaster Jackett who 
provided an overview of Truro’s current commercial fishery conditions as well as challenges affecting 
local commercial fishermen. A discussion followed among Members, Harbormaster Jackett, and Ms. 
Leggett to further explore the CCCFA’s increased numbers in membership; the accuracy of the report’s 
identifying 37 vessels with a Truro homeport; the definition of a “permitted harvester” as the report 
indicated 44 permitted harvesters with a Truro address; and the notation in the report that Truro’s ramp 
and hoist need repair as Truro does not have a hoist.  
 
Vice Chair Weinstein noted that if the reported information is indeed accurate it would present Truro 
with the opportunity to put pressure on the Commonwealth’s Division of Marine Fisheries, through the 
division’s public access grants, to improve Truro’s harbor. Chair Reed asked Ms. Leggett to continue the 
dialogue with Vice Chair Weinstein through coordination with Town staff. Ms. Leggett thanked the 
Members and left the meeting.  
 
B. Discuss and Potentially Adopt a Community Service Award Program Presenter-John Dundas, Select 
Board Clerk 
 
Chair Reed recognized Member Dundas who thanked Town Manager Tangeman and Assistant Town 
Clerk Clark for their support in this endeavor. Member Dundas provided background on the 
establishment of this community service award program named in honor of Fred Todd a longtime 
community volunteer and beloved resident of Truro who had recently passed away. Member Dundas 
noted that Mr. Todd’s family members were delighted that this award was named in Mr. Todd’s honor.  
 
Member Dundas reviewed the criteria for nominations, voting on the nominations, the development of 
a recognition coin and certificate, and the public presentation to the awardee by the Town leadership 
and a member of the Todd family. Members discussed the criteria and the nomination process, and 
unanimously supported the establishment of this award program. Member Dundas thanked the 
Members for their input and comments. Member Dundas proposed that he incorporate the Members’ 
suggestions and return with a more completed document at the next meeting. 
 
Chair Reed thanked Member Dundas and noted that this will be a tabled item for the next meeting in 
December.   
 
C. Review and Approve Allocation of Affordable Housing Trust Funds for Rental Assistance Program- 
Presenter: Betty Gallo, Truro Housing Authority (THA) Member 
 
Chair Reed recognized Ms. Gallo who provided background on the program as well as the status of 
budgeted funds and grant monies to support participants in the program. Participants apply for financial 
support to reduce utility costs and access community food resources. Ms. Gallo stated that six Truro 
families are currently enrolled in the program and that five families were in the process of enrollment. 
Ms. Gallo noted that the THA is developing an outreach program to reach more community members as 
the Housing Production Plan indicated that as many as 25% of Truro’s residents are unemployed during 



Page 3 of 6 
 

the off-season. Ms. Gallo requested the allocation of trust funds in the amount of $50,000 per year be 
extended for an additional two years.  
 
Members thanked Ms. Gallo for her efforts and voiced their support for the program moving forward.  
 
Vice Chair Weinstein made a motion to allocate up to $50,000 for this year and another $50,000 for 
next year, totaling $100,000, from the Affordable Housing Trust Fund for the Rental Assistance 
Program. 
Member Dundas seconded the motion.    
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein - Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed - Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Chair Reed recognized Ms. Gallo who thanked the Members. Ms. Gallo also thanked Assistant Town 
Manager Clark, Town Planner/Land Use Counsel Barbara Carboni, and Town Administration’s Executive 
Assistant Noelle Scoullar for their help in this process.  
 
D. Review and Approve Request for DPW Excavator Purchase-Presenter: Jarrod Cabral, Public Works 
Director 

Chair Reed recognized DPW Director Cabral who provided background and stated the need for this 
purchase in the amount of $184,985. Members and DPW Director Cabral discussed the following topics: 
whether Truro should purchase an extended warranty (not purchased) and a brief review of the Chapter 
90 Account and its purpose. 

Member Rein made a motion to approve the request for the purchase of the John Deer excavator and 
to authorize the Town Manager to sign the Chapter 90 authorization document. 
Member Dundas seconded the motion.    
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein - Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed - Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Chair Reed reviewed the Consent Agenda and Member Areson commented that the Select Board 
minutes from the October 11th, 2022, meeting included a long paragraph regarding the Select Board’s 
Goals and Objectives. Member Areson suggested the paragraph be removed and replaced with the 
following language: 
 



Page 4 of 6 
 

“Select Board Members discussed progress on their 2022 Goals and Objectives. The discussion, actions, 
and progress made are reflected in a chart attached to these minutes.” 
 
Member Areson’s suggestion was supported by all the Members. 
 
Prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda, Chair Reed recused herself from the portion of the Consent 
Agenda regarding the liquor licensing for Chequessett Chocolate. 
 
A. Review/Approve and Authorize Signature: None 
Review and Approve Appointment Renewals: None 
C. Review and Approve 2023 Annual Alcohol Licenses-Montano’s Restaurant, Truro Vineyards, and 
Pamet Valley Package 
D. Review and Approve the ABCC 2023 Renewal Certification Form for Alcohol Licenses 
E. Review and Approve Select Board Minutes; October 11, 2022 
  
Chair Reed made a motion to accept the Consent Agenda with the amended changes approved by the 
Select Board related to the Meeting Minutes of 10/11/22 and the recusal of Chair Reed regarding the 
Chequessett Chocolate licensing. 
Member Dundas seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein - Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed - Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 

SELECT BOARD REPORTS/COMMENTS  

Vice Chair Weinstein said that deer hunting season has begun, and the public should be aware. Vice 
Chair Weinstein also reminded the public that deer hunting is permitted in the National Seashore.  

Member Dundas said that the Truro Central School was hosting its annual Thanksgiving feast on 
Tuesday, November 22nd, 2022. Member Dundas reminded Members that he and Member Areson are 
working on a draft letter for the Planning Board and the Economic Development Committee. Member 
Dundas noted that it was his intent to add the draft letter to the agenda for the first Select Board 
meeting in December.   

Member Areson said that the Open Space Committee will host a forum on Thursday, November 17th, 
2022, at 5:30 pm, to gather the public’s comments on the Open Space and Recreation Plan. Member 
Areson added that December 6th, 2022, is also the start of the Budget Task Force’s hearings and she 
encouraged the public to attend. More information is available on the Town’s website and the meetings 
will be recorded. Member Areson also asked to add a discussion of in-person Select Board meetings to 
the agenda of an upcoming meeting. Member Areson requested that after the holidays the Select Board 
in office hours be reinstated as they are very important. The Local Comprehensive Plan Committee 
(LCPC) will meet on Monday to work on the Vision Statement and Growth Policy.   



Page 5 of 6 
 

Member Rein said that the Town currently has three open surveys (Open Space and Recreation Plan, 
Cable and Internet Access, and the Library 5-Year Strategic Planning) which are available on the Town 
website and Member Rein encouraged residents to complete the surveys online. 
 
Chair Reed said that she has received complaints from residents regarding tacks on National Seashore 
trails around Truro. Bicyclists have discovered tacks in their bicycle tires after the completion of their 
rides. Chair Reed noted that is a National Seashore issue. Chair Reed requested anyone who is placing 
tacks on the trails to refrain from doing so as the tacks can severely injure wildlife.  
 
TOWN MANAGER REPORT 

Town Manager Tangeman announced that the Town had two firefighters/EMTs (Kate Dorsey and 
Braden Wilson) who graduated recently from the Stowe Fire Academy. Town Manager Tangeman said 
that Truro was awarded the MassDevelopment Underutilized Properties Program 2023 grant for 
$900,000 to offset the cost of potential housing and other issues which need to be addressed with those 
funds. A more formal announcement of the grant will be forthcoming through a press release and it will 
detail how those monies will be spent. Town Manager Tangeman recognized Assistant Town Manager 
Clark and DPW Director Cabral for their efforts in obtaining approval for the grant. Town Manager 
Tangeman congratulated Town Clerk Kaci Fullerton on a very successful election as it resulted in many 
voters participating in the election process and without any issues.    

NEXT MEETING AGENDA 

Town Manager Tangeman provided an overview of the agenda for the next regular meeting on 
Wednesday, December 6th, 2022. 

Member Areson made a motion to adjourn at 6:45 pm. 
Chair Reed seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein - Aye 
Member Dundas - Aye 
Member Areson - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed - Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Alexander O. Powers 
 
 
____________________________  
Darrin K. Tangeman Under the Authority of the Truro Select Board 
 

Public Records Material Attachments  



Page 6 of 6 
 

Legal Notice 
Cape Cod Commercial Fishermen’s Alliance General Introduction 
Port Profile: Truro 
Massachusetts Commercial Fishing Port Profiles 
Criteria 
Excavator Quote 
Chapter 90 Project Request Form 
2023 Annual Alcohol ABCC Applications-signed by business owners 
Chief of Police Approval Memo 
2022 Annual Alcohol Licenses 
Annual Alcohol Beverages Control Commission Renewal Certification 2023 
Email from FarmMaid Foods Inc. dba Chequessett Chocolate owner regarding 2023 license 


	7A  Agenda Item - Representative for Financial Policies working group.pdf
	Agenda Item: 7A
	FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE): Project is grant funded through the Commonwealth’s Community Compact Program.




